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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Introduction

Barings Alpha Funds Plc (the “Company”) is an open-ended umbrella investment company with segregated liability between funds 
and with variable capital incorporated in Ireland on 14 September 2005 under the Companies Act 2014 (as amended) with registration 
number 408058. The Company has been authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “CBI”) as a designated investment company 
pursuant to the Companies Act 2014 (as amended). The Alternative Investment Fund Manager (the “AIFM”), Baring International 
Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited, has been authorised by the CBI as AIFM pursuant to the European Union (AIFM) Regulations 
2013. The Company is classified as an Alternative Investment Fund (the “AIF”) in accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund 
Rulebook (the “AIF Rulebook”) issued by the CBI. The Company is also listed on Euronext Dublin Global Exchange Market.  

The Company is an umbrella fund in that different funds may be issued from time to time by the Directors with the prior approval of 
the CBI. The assets of each fund are invested in accordance with the investment objective and policy. 

The Company has one active fund as at 30 April 2020, the Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund (the “Fund”), which commenced 
business on 16 January 2007. The Fund has five classes of shares on offer at the financial year-end. Further details of the Fund are 
contained in the Prospectus.

The financial statements include all the trades received up until 12:00p.m. (Irish time) on 30 April 2020, the valuation point for the 
Fund. 
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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Investment Objective and Policy

The Investment objective of Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund (the “Fund”) is to achieve an absolute return of 4% in excess of 
cash based on the three-month sterling LIBOR. There can be no guarantee that the investment objective of the Fund will be achieved. 

The Fund will invest primarily in, and/or seek to benefit from, investment returns derived from fixed-income securities, equities, 
alternative asset classes, commodities and property assets. The Fund may use derivative instruments for the purpose of efficient 
portfolio management (which includes hedging) and for any investment purposes that are consistent with the investment objective 
and polices of the Fund. Please refer to the Prospectus for the full investment objective and policy. 

How the Fund is managed
Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) uses the ideas generated by the Strategic Policy Group, the global 
macro research asset allocation group, to choose what the Investment Manager believes are the best investments to achieve the 
investment objectives of the Fund. This means the Investment Manager constructs a portfolio of stocks or bonds from a mix of 
companies, countries and sectors to suit the asset allocation policy current at that point in time. 

The Investment Manager believes that asset allocation is the most important driver of returns. It is important to be in the right market 
at the right time, and to be able to retreat to a more defensive position to help manage risk. The Investment Manager follows a two-
stage investment process that accesses both long-term return opportunities, driven by slowly evolving macroeconomic factors, and 
shorter-term opportunities generated by market volatility. The Investment Manager uses the wide investment universe to ensure that 
it avoids over-diversification and focusses on assets that it believes are appropriate for the prevailing economic and market cycle.

Please refer to the Prospectus for the full risk profile. Investors should read the Prospectus and carefully consider the potential risk 
factors as well as reward factors before investing.
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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Directors’ Report

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

The Directors present herewith their annual report and audited financial statements of Barings Alpha Funds Plc (the “Company”) for 
the financial year ended 30 April 2020.

Statement of Directors' responsibilities 
The Directors are responsible for preparing the report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable Irish law and 
regulations. Irish Company Law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under the law, the 
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance Irish Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including 
Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) as 
issued by the UK Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”), and Irish law.

Under Irish Company Law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company as at the financial year end date and of the profit or loss of 
the Company for the financial year and otherwise comply with the Companies Act 2014 (as amended). In preparing these financial 
statements, the Directors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards, identify those 

standards, and note the effect and the reasons for any material departure from those standards;
• assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
• use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or cease operations, or have no 

realistic alternative but to do so.
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply 
with the Companies Act (as amended). The Directors have appointed Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services 
(Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator”) to keep adequate accounting records which are located at the offices of the administrator at 
Georges Court, 54-62 Townsend Street, Dublin 2, Ireland.

They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company. In 
this regard they have entrusted the assets of the Company to Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Depositary”) 
for safe-keeping. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to prevent and detect fraud 
and other irregularities. The Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report that complies with the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).

The financial statements are published at www.barings.com. The Directors together with Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) 
Limited (the “AIFM”) and Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) are responsible for the maintenance and 
integrity of the website as far as it relates to Barings Funds. Legislation in the Republic of Ireland governing the presentation and 
dissemination of the financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Review of the performance and future developments of the business
A detailed review of the Company’s activities, future developments and KPI’s for the financial year ended 30 April 2020 are included 
in the Investment Manager’s reports.

Results and distributions
The results of operations for the financial year are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Directors declared 
distributions during the year as set out in note 8.
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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Directors’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

Risk management objectives and policies
An investment in the Company involves a degree of risk, including, but not limited to, the risks outlined in note 11. An investment in 
the Company is only suitable for investors who are in a position to take such risks. There can be no assurance that the Company will 
achieve its objectives and the value of shares can go down as well as up. The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company 
are market price risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk, which are outlined in note 11 to these financial 
statements.  

Directors
The names and nationalities of persons who are Directors of the Company at any time during the financial year ended 30 April 2020 
are set out below: 

Mr. Alan Behen (Irish) (appointed 11 September 2019)
Mr. Peter Clark (British) 
Mr. James Cleary† (Irish) 
Mr. David Conway† (Irish) 
Ms. Barbara Healy† (Irish)
Mr. Timothy Schulze (United States)
Mr. Paul Smyth (Irish) (appointed 11 September 2019)
Mr. Julian Swayne (British) 

Unless stated otherwise, the Directors served for the entire year.

Directors’ & Company Secretary’s interest in the shares of the Company
None of the Directors, the Company secretary or their families hold or held any beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company 
at any time during the financial year ended 30 April 2020 (30 April 2019: none).

Transactions involving Directors
Other than as stated under note 9, “Related Party Transactions, “Significant agreements and fees”, there are no contracts or 
arrangements of any significance in relation to the business of the Company in which the Directors had any interest, as defined in 
the Companies Act (as amended), at any time during the financial year ended 30 April 2020 (30 April 2019: none).

Mr. Julian Swayne and Mr. Peter Clark are employed by Barings Investment Services Limited. Mr. Timothy Schulze is an employee 
of Barings LLC . Mr. Alan Behen and Mr. Paul Smyth are employees of the AIFM. Jim Cleary, David Conway and Barbara Healy 
are all non-executive Directors, independent of the Investment Manager. All of the Directors are also Directors of the AIFM.

Significant events during the financial year
Alan Behen and Paul Smyth were appointed as Directors of the Company with effect from 11 September 2019.

The Fund issued a new Prospectus on 22 May 2019. An updated Prospectus for the Company was also issued on 9 April 2020. 
The material changes to the Prospectus are outlined in note 19.

On 14 April 2020, the Directors determined to establish side-pocket classes of the Fund. The Class SP GBP Acc and Class SP 
USD Hedged were both launched on 14 April 2020 as a result.

The side-pocket classes were deemed necessary by the Directors due to the extreme market volatility and the exceptional 
circumstances in the UK property market following the reaction to the COVID-19 outbreak, which meant that the property funds that 
the Fund has invested in have been suspended due to an inability to accurately or fairly value the funds. For further details please 
see note 4.
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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Directors’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

COVID-19
The spread of COVID-19 around the world in the first half of 2020 has caused significant volatility in international markets. There is 
still uncertainty around the breadth and duration of business disruptions related to COVID-19, as well as its impact on international 
economies and, as such, the Company is actively monitoring the extent of the impact to its operations, financial accounting and 
reporting.

There have been no other significant events during the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, may have had an impact 
on the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 April 2020.

Events subsequent to the financial year-end
Mr. Timothy Schulze resigned as Director of the Company with effect from 10 August 2020.

As at the approval date of the financial statements, Blackrock UK Property Fund and Schroder Unit Trusts, the UK property funds 
that the Fund has invested in via the side-pocket classes, remain suspended due to an inability to accurately or fairly value the funds.

There have been no other events subsequent to the financial year-end which, in the opinion of the Directors, may have had an impact 
on the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 April 2020. 

Relevant audit information
The Directors believe that they have taken all steps necessary to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and have 
established that the Company’s statutory auditors are aware of that information. In so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which the Company’s statutory auditors are unaware.

Brexit
The United Kingdom (the “UK”) held a referendum on 23 June 2016 on whether to leave or remain in the European Union (the “EU”). 
The outcome of the referendum was in favour of leaving the EU. The UK officially withdrew from the EU on 31 January 2020 but will 
continue to follow all of the EU rules and its trading relationship will remain the same until the end of the transitional period ending on 
31 December 2020.

There are a number of uncertainties in connection with the future of the UK and its relationship with the EU, including the terms of the 
agreement it reaches in relation to its withdrawal from the EU and any agreements it reaches in relation to its future relationship with 
the EU and Barings continues to plan for a number of possible scenarios. Barings is committed to ensuring continuity of service for 
its investors and protecting its business against potential regulatory or other market access barriers related to Brexit. In this regard, 
Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited (“BIFMI”), will continue as the Manager of the Company and the Sub-Funds 
will continue to be registered for distribution into relevant jurisdictions in the EU and elsewhere. Portfolio management in respect of 
European investments will continue to be delegated to Baring Asset Management Limited, a UK entity and portfolio management 
of US investments will continue to be conducted by Barings LLC, a US entity. The custodians and administrators of the Sub-Funds 
are also EU entities. In addition, BIFMI has enhanced its presence in Dublin and recruited locally at all levels to staff its new office, 
reflecting the increased significance of BIFMI’s role within the Barings business.

Whilst the medium to long-term consequences of the decision to leave the EU remain uncertain in any scenario, there could be short 
term volatility which could have a negative impact on general economic conditions, business and consumer confidence in both the 
UK and EU, which may in turn have negative political, economic and market impacts more widely. The longer-term consequences 
may be affected by the terms of any future arrangements the UK has with the EU. Among other things, the UK’s decision to leave the 
EU could lead to changes in the law and tax treatment of funds, instability in the equity, debt and foreign exchange markets, including 
volatility in the value of sterling or the euro. 

Significant events during the financial year (continued)
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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Directors’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

Directors’ compliance statement
The Directors, in accordance with Section 225(2) of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended), acknowledge that they are responsible 
for securing the Company’s compliance with certain obligations specified in that sector arising from the Companies Act 2014 (as 
amended), where applicable, the Market Abuse (Directive 2003/6/EC) Regulations 2005, the Prospectus (Directive 2003/71/EC) 
Regulations 2015, the Transparency (Directive 2004/109/EC) Regulations 2007 and Tax laws (‘relevant obligations’).The Directors 
confirm that:

• a compliance policy statement has been drawn up setting out the Company’s policies with regard to such compliance; 
• appropriate arrangements and structures that, in their opinion, are designed to secure material compliance with the Company’s 

relevant obligations have been put in place; and 
• the procedures in place for the review, approval and circulation of the audited financial accounts and statements which are 

appropriate for an investment company pursuant with the Central Bank UCITS Regulations.
• A review has been conducted, during the financial year, of the arrangements and structures that have been put in place to secure 

the Company’s compliance with its relevant obligations.

Audit committee statement
The Directors have decided not to establish an audit committee pursuant to section 167(2) of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended), 
based on:

(a) the nature, scale and complexity of the Company’s business range of services and activities undertaken in the course of that 
business; 

(b) the resources available to the Company and the resources and expertise of the various third parties engaged to support the 
Company and carry out certain functions on its behalf; and 

(c) the procedures in place for the review, approval and circulation of the audited financial accounts and statements which are 
appropriate for an investment company pursuant with the Central Bank UCITS Regulations.

 
There is an audit committee established in the US at Barings LLC covering the Barings group. Barings LLC is the holding company of 
Barings Group, which includes the Manager, the Investment Manager and Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited.

Corporate governance statement
The Company is subject to comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended), and the CBI’s AIF Rulebook and 
the CBI’s AIF Regulations and guidance notes, as applicable to the Company. The European Communities (Directive 2006/46/EC) 
Regulations (S.I. 450 of 2009 and S.I. 83 of 2010) (the “Regulations”) requires the inclusion of a corporate governance statement in 
the Directors’ Report. The aforementioned Regulations apply to all entities that are listed on Euronext Dublin.

The Board of Directors has voluntarily complied with the Corporate Governance Code for Irish domiciled Investment Funds, as 
published by Irish Funds (“IF”) as the Company’s corporate governance code (the “IF Code”). The Board of Directors has assessed 
the measures included in the IF Code as being consistent with its corporate governance practices and procedures for the financial 
year.

The Company was also subject to corporate governance practices imposed by:

(i) The Irish Companies Act, 2014 (as amended), which are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company; and may 
also be obtained at http://www.irishstatutebook.ie/home.html; 

(ii) The Articles of Association of the Company which are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company and at the 
Companies Registration Office in Ireland; 

(iii) The Central Bank’s AIF Rulebook which can be obtained from the Central Bank’s website at http://www.centralbank.ie/regulation/
industry-sectors/funds/pages/default.aspx and available for inspection at the registered office of the Company; and

(iv) Euronext Dublin through the Euronext Dublin Code of Listing Requirements and Procedures which can be obtained from Euronext 
Dublin’s website at: http://www.ise.ie/index.asp?locID=7&docID=-1. 

The Board did not adopt any further corporate governance codes during the financial year.
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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Directors’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

It should be noted that the IF Code reflects existing corporate governance practices imposed on Irish authorised collective investment 
schemes, as noted above. If the IF Code is adopted on a voluntary basis, it can be referred to in the disclosures made in the Directors’ 
Report in compliance with the provisions of the European Communities (Directive 2006/46/EC) Regulations (i.e. S.I. 450 of 2009 and 
S.I. 83 of 2010).

Internal Control and Risk Management Systems in relation to Financial Reporting
The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control and risk management systems of the 
Company in relation to the financial reporting process. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of error or 
fraud in achieving the Company’s financial reporting objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against 
material misstatement or loss. 

The Board of Directors has procedures in place to ensure that all relevant adequate accounting records are properly maintained 
and are readily available, including the production of annual and semi-annual financial statements. The annual and semi-annual 
financial statements of the Company are required to be approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and the annual financial 
statements of the Company are required to be filed with the CBI. The statutory financial statements are required to be audited by 
independent auditors who report annually to the Board of Directors on their findings. 

The Board of Directors evaluates and discusses significant accounting and reporting issues as the need arises. The Board of Directors 
has appointed Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited as its Administrator (the “Administrator”). 
The Administrator maintains the books and records of the Company. The Administrator is authorised and regulated by the CBI and must 
comply with the rules imposed by the CBI. From time to time, the Board of Directors also examines and evaluates the Administrator’s 
financial accounting and reporting routines and monitors and evaluates the external auditors’ performance, qualifications and 
independence. 

During the financial year of these financial statements, the Board was responsible for the review and approval of the annual financial 
statements as set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities. The statutory financial statements are required to be audited 
by independent auditors who report annually to the Board on their findings. The Board monitors and evaluates the independent 
auditor’s performance, qualifications and independence. As part of its review procedures, the Board receives presentations from 
relevant parties including consideration of International Accounting Standards and their impact on the annual financial statements, 
and presentations and reports on the audit process. The Board evaluates and discusses significant accounting and reporting issues 
as the need arises.

Dealing with Shareholders
The convening and conduct of shareholders’ meetings are governed by the Articles of Association of the Company and the Companies 
Act 2014 (as amended). 

Although the Directors may convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company at any time, the Directors are required to 
convene an annual general meeting of the Company within eighteen months of incorporation and within fifteen months of the date of 
the previous annual general meeting thereafter. 

Any Director or any two holders may convene an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner as general meetings may be 
convened by the Directors. No less than twenty-one days’ notice of every annual general meeting and any meeting convened for 
the passing of a special resolution must be given to shareholders, and fourteen days’ notice must be given in the case of any other 
general meeting unless the auditors of the Company and all the shareholders of the Company entitled to attend and vote agree to a 
shorter notice period. 

Two members present either in person or by proxy constitutes a quorum at a general meeting, provided that the quorum for a general 
meeting convened to consider any alteration to the class rights of shares is two shareholders holding or representing by proxy at least 
one-third of the issued shares of the relevant Fund or class. 

Corporate governance statement (continued)
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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Directors’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

Every holder of participating shares present in person or by proxy who votes on a show of hands is entitled to one vote. On a poll, 
every holder of participating shares present in person or by proxy is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held. The Chairman 
of a general meeting of the Company or at least two members present in person or by proxy or any holder or holders of participating 
shares present in person or by proxy representing at least one-tenth of the shares in issue having the right to vote at such meeting 
may demand a poll.

Board composition and activities
In accordance with the Companies Act and the Articles of Association, unless otherwise determined by an ordinary resolution of the 
Company in general meeting, the number of Directors may not be less than two. Currently, the Board of Directors of the Company is 
composed of eight Directors, being those listed in the directory in these financial statements. 

The business of the Company is managed by the Directors, who exercise all such powers of the Company as are required by the 
Companies Act 2014 or by the Articles of Association of the Company to be exercised by the Company in a general meeting. 

The Board is responsible for the Company’s overall direction and strategy and to this end it reserves the decision making power on 
issues such as the determination of medium and long-term goals, review of managerial performance, organisational structure and 
capital needs and commitments to achieve the Company’s strategic goals. To achieve these responsibilities, the Board meets on 
a quarterly basis to review the operations of the Company, address matters of strategic importance and to receive reports from the 
Administrator, Depositary and the Investment Manager. However, a Director may, and the Company secretary of the Company on the 
requisition of a Director will, at any time summon a meeting of the Directors and ad hoc meetings in addition to the four meetings that 
are convened as required. 

Questions arising at any meeting of the Directors are determined by a majority of votes. In the case of an equality of votes, the 
Chairman has a second or casting vote. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Directors is two. 
There are no sub-committees of the Board of Directors.

Transactions with connected parties
The CBI’s Alternative Investment Fund (“AIF”) Rulebook requires that any transaction carried out with the Company by the AIFM, 
Depositary, Investment Manager and/or associated group of companies of these (“connected parties”) are carried out as if negotiated 
at arm’s length and are in the best interests of the shareholders.  

The Directors of the Company are satisfied that there are arrangements (evidenced by written procedures) in place to ensure that this 
requirement is applied to all transactions with connected parties, and that all transactions with connected parties during the financial 
year complied with the obligations set out in this paragraph. 

Remuneration code
As the Company constitutes an AIF under the European Union’s Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (the “AIFMD”), the 
Company is required to comply with the AIFMD remuneration code. The Company has implemented a remuneration policy consistent 
with European Securities and Markets Authority’s (“ESMA”) remuneration guidelines and, in particular, the provisions of Annex II of 
Directive 2011/61/EU. Details of which are available on the Barings website at http://www.barings.com/investement-policies.

Please refer to Appendix 2 for the remuneration disclosure of the AIFM. 

Independent Auditors
The Independent Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors have indicated their willingness 
to continue in office in accordance with Section 383 (2) of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).

Dealing with Shareholders (continued)
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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Directors’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

Director: ______________    Director: ______________ 
                                                                                           

Date: 20 August 2020
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Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Annual Depositary Report to Shareholders

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

We, Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited, appointed Depositary to Barings Alpha Funds Plc (the “Company”), provide 
this report solely in favour of the shareholders of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2020 (the “Annual Accounting Period”). 
This report is provided in accordance with the current Depositary obligation under the Central Bank of Ireland Alternative Investment 
Fund Rulebook (the “AIF Rulebook”), Chapter 5 (iii). We do not, in the provision of this report, accept nor assume responsibility for 
any other purpose or person to whom this report is shown. 

In accordance with our Depositary obligation under the AIF Rulebook, we have enquired into the conduct of the Alternative Investment 
Fund Manager (the “AIFM”) for this Annual Accounting Period and we hereby report thereon to the shareholders of the Company as 
follows:

Opinion 
We are of the opinion that the Company has been managed by the AIFM during the Annual Accounting Period, in all material respects:  

(i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the Company by the constitutional 
document and by the Central Bank of Ireland under the powers granted to the Central Bank of Ireland by the investment fund 
legislation; and

(ii) otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the constitutional document and the investment fund legislation.

_________________________
For and on behalf of
 
  
Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited 
Georges Court  
54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin 2
D02 R156
 
20 August 2020
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Barings Alpha 
Funds plc  

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

In our opinion, Barings Alpha Funds plc’s financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the Company’s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 30 April 2020 and of its 
results for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland (accounting 
standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish law); and 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014. 

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report & Audited Financial Statements, which 
comprise: 

 the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2020; 

 the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended; 

 the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares for the year 
then ended; 

 the Schedule of Investments as at 30 April 2020; and 

 the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“ISAs (Ireland)”) and 
applicable law. 

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence 

We remained independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements in Ireland, which includes IAASA’s Ethical Standard as applicable to listed entities, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Our audit approach 

Overview 

 Materiality 

 Overall materiality: 50 basis points of Net Assets Value ("NAV") at 30 April 2020. 

  Audit scope 

 The Company is an open-ended investment Company with variable capital. We tailored 
the scope of our audit taking into account the types of investments within the Company, 
the involvement of the third parties referred to overleaf, the accounting processes and 
controls, and the industry in which the Company operates. 

  Key audit matters 

 Valuation and existence of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss. 

The scope of our audit 

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial 
statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example the selection of 
pricing sources to value the investment portfolio. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management 
override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a 
risk of material misstatement due to fraud.  

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of 
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement 
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit 
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any 
comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.  

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Valuation and existence of financial assets and financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Refer to note 2 for the accounting policies of Financial 
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss on pages 23 and 24 and the Schedule of Investments in 
the financial statements on pages 47 to 53. 

The financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss included in the Statement of 
Financial Position as at 30 April 2020 are valued at fair 
value in line with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
in Ireland. 

This is considered a key audit matter as it represents the 
principal element of the financial statements. 

In relation to listed bonds, equities, futures, forwards and 
options, we tested the investment portfolio by 
independently agreeing the valuation of investments to 
third party vendor sources at the year-end date. 

We obtained independent confirmation from the Fund's 
Depositary of the investment portfolio held as at 30 April 
2020, agreeing the amounts held to the accounting records. 

We tested the valuation and existence of the investments 
into the portfolio funds as follows: 

 We obtained independent confirmations from the 
administrators of the portfolio funds to confirm 
existence and valuation of those funds, and 
reconciled the confirmations to the underlying 
accounting records of the Company. We compared 
the shares and net asset value per share used by the 
Company to the independently obtained 
confirmations from the portfolio funds' 
administrators. We also considered the reliability 
of the providers of the information; 

 We obtained independent confirmation from the 
Depositary of the shares held in the portfolio funds, 
agreeing the amounts to the accounting records; 

 We also obtained the most recent set of audited 



 

 

 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

financial statements for the portfolio funds; 

 As the investments in portfolio funds do not have a 
coterminous year end with the Company, we 
agreed the net asset value per share as stated 
within the latest audited financial statements of 
those portfolio funds to the net asset value per 
share used in the valuation of those investments in 
the accounting records of the Company at the 
equivalent date; 

 We read the independent auditors' report included 
within the audited financial statements of the 
portfolio funds to ensure there were no 
modifications in the reports. We also considered 
whether the audit had been completed by a 
reputable auditor, whether the opinion was 
unqualified and whether the basis of preparation 
was appropriate. 

No material misstatements were identified as a result of the 
procedures performed.  

      
How we tailored the audit scope 

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the 
industry in which it operates. 

The directors control the affairs of the Company and are responsible for the overall investment policy which is determined 
by them. The Company engages the Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM") to manage certain duties and 
responsibilities with regards to the day to day management of the Company. The AIFM has delegated certain 
responsibilities to Baring Asset Management Limited (the 'Investment Manager') and to Northern Trust International 
Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited (the 'Administrator'). The financial statements, which remain the 
responsibility of the directors, are prepared on their behalf by the Administrator. The Company has appointed Northern 
Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Depositary”) to act as Depositary of the Company’s assets. In establishing 
the overall approach to our audit we assessed the risk of material misstatement taking into account the nature, likelihood 
and potential magnitude of any misstatement. As part of our risk assessment, we considered the Company’s interaction 
with the Administrator, and we assessed the control environment in place at the Administrator. 

Materiality 

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for 
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, 
timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in 
evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.  

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality as follows: 

Overall materiality and how 
we determined it 

50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points) of Net Assets Value ("NAV") at 30 April 
2020. 

Rationale for benchmark 
applied 

We have applied this benchmark because the main objective of the Company is to 
provide investors with a total return taking account of the capital and income 
returns. 

We agreed with the Directors of the AIFM that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above 5 
basis points of the Fund’s NAV, for NAV per share impacting differences (2019: 5 basis points of the Fund’s NAV, for NAV 
per share impacting differences) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for 
qualitative reasons. 



 

 

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (Ireland) require us to report to you 
where: 

 the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 
appropriate; or 

 the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 
significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a 
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

Reporting on other information 

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report & Audited Financial Statements other than 
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our 
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit 
opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection 
with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material 
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial 
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report based on these responsibilities. 

With respect to the Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the Companies Act 2014 
have been included. 

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (Ireland) and the 
Companies Act 2014 require us to also report certain opinions and matters as described below: 

 In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Directors’ 
Report for the year ended 30 April 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in 
accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

 Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the 
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors’ Report. 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities set out on page 4, the directors are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view. 

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 



A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA website at: 

https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of_auditors_responsibilities_for
_audit.pdf. 

This description forms part of our auditors’ report. 

Use of this report 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance 
with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or 
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it 
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

Other required reporting 

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters 

 We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

 In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be
readily and properly audited.

 The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Companies Act 2014 exception reporting 

Directors’ remuneration and transactions 

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’ 
remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made. We have no exceptions to 
report arising from this responsibility. 

Pat Candon 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm 
Dublin 
20 August 2020 
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Performance
Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund (the “Fund”) generated a gross return of -10.1% on the Class I GBP Acc share class and 
under performed against the performance comparator with a return of 4.8%* during the reporting period. The Fund generated a net 
return of -10.7% on the Class I GBP Acc share class.

We spent much of 2019 talking to clients about our conviction in the economically sensitive fixed income portions of the portfolio. 
These are fixed income positions including high yield bonds (US and European) and Emerging Market hard currency debt. These 
positions performed well throughout 2019. Markets moved decisively higher over the fourth quarter of 2019 as market sentiment 
improved. This increase in risk appetite was driven by a number of factors ranging from slightly better economic data releases to 
anticipation around a ‘phase one’ trade agreement between China and the US. At the start of 2020 the portfolio was positioned for a 
world of growth. 

In the first quarter of 2020 the dual crisis of Covid-19 and the simultaneous oil price war caused a rapid market sell-off. The speed 
and depth of the sell-off had a significant impact to performance. No market was unscathed and even defensive assets such as 
government bonds and gold proved unreliable. 

With Covid-19 spreading globally we started to move to a more defensive positioning. We cut equities and emerging market local 
currency bonds which to us were the obvious areas that would feel pain. We added to positions in gold and certain credit areas such 
as investment grade credit and emerging market hard currency bonds which we felt would be the beneficiaries of a low interest 
environment.

While cutting back our equity allocations we have re-focused within equities much more. Large reductions in our UK and Japanese 
holdings are good examples. Both are very export related countries in a world where little trade is happening. In place of these areas 
we have built up our equity exposure to the technology sector specifically and to the US in general. Technology we feel will be one 
of the most resilient sectors during this slowdown. Not only will certain online trends accelerate during the shutdown, but we expect 
corporate spend on IT to increase during the recovery.

Market outlook
The unfolding of events due to the outbreak of Covid-19 and the oil price war in the past few months have catalysed extraordinary 
action from central banks globally. Interest rates have been cut all around the world. Quantitative Easing (“QE”) programmes have 
been unleashed. And this time governments have joined in the attempt to support growth too. We have seen significant commitments 
from governments to protect workers and businesses.

All of this has been done much quicker, more broadly, and in far greater magnitude than the financial crash in 2008. Roughly speaking 
the fiscal and monetary measures are expected to amount to circa 10.00% of GDP vs 2.00% of GDP in 2008. Each week the stimulus 
measures get bigger as more countries join in and existing announcements expanded.

In the face of long term headwinds from Brexit to the pain on the high street we have been reducing our property exposure. Since 
2015 our property exposure fell from c.9% to c.4% of the Fund.

In December 2019 we decided to exit the final part of this allocation, and placed redemption orders for 31 March 2020 on our two 
remaining fund holdings both of which deal quarterly.

Sadly, the UK property market has been one of the many victims of Covid-19. In the absence of any transactions, valuers have little 
certainty on how to price the underlying property assets. The UK property market has ceased up, and our redemptions have been 
caught up with it, with those funds now suspended. The fairest way to deal with this issue was to place this small allocation into a 
side pocket. On the 14 April 2020 the side pocket was launched. The Value Affected Investments constituted 3.97% of the Fund’s net 
asset value as of 31 March 2020. It is worth noting the underlying property funds are still being managed in the same way and had 
been good performers with a long time underweight to the U.K. retail sector. As liquidity returns to the market we expect to sell these 
assets in line with our original plan.
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In an ever lower interest rate environment, as the panic subsides our credit positions should strengthen even without reliance on a 
recovery in corporate earnings, simply on the back of their yielding characteristics. We remain prudent and do expect further volatility 
in the nearer term, however as countries reopen and coping strategies will be implemented, vaccines will be in sight and second 
waves are unlikely to create to sort of panic we saw in the first quarter of 2020. We will continue to monitor the markets and add 
selectively.

 * The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices. 
Baring Asset Management Limited
May 2020
 

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their funds as they see fit, within 
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from 
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.

Market outlook (continued)



The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings Dynamic 
Asset Allocation 

Fund 
30 April 2020

Barings Dynamic 
Asset Allocation 

Fund 
30 April 2019

Notes £ £
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2    1,251,893,709    1,703,340,770
Cash and cash equivalents 3    109,688,002    72,171,157
Cash collateral receivable from brokers 3    16,592,243    12,730,242
Securities sold receivable 2    11,951,574    53,323,096
Dividends and interest receivable 2    2,409,164    4,548,699
Management fee rebate due 9    251,152    205,321
Other assets    –    55,850
Total assets    1,392,785,844    1,846,375,135

Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2    (15,687,398)    (5,365,459)
Cash collateral payable to brokers 3    (1,580,000)    –
Securities purchased payable 2    (164,121)    (33,010,832)
Other payables and accrued expenses 5    (764,647)    (1,397,270)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to  
holders of redeemable participating shares)    (18,196,166)    (39,773,561)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable  
participating shares    1,374,589,678    1,806,601,574

 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors:
 
Director
 
Director
 
20 August 2020



The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

20

Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Barings Dynamic 
Asset Allocation 

Fund 
30 April 2020

Barings Dynamic 
Asset Allocation 

Fund 
30 April 2019

Notes £ £
Income
Bank interest income 2    276,593    337,194
Interest income 2    33,728,528    20,470,031
Dividend income 2    14,540,128    22,224,559
Management fee rebate 9    797,427    1,010,682
Net fair value loss on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss 7    (195,235,650)    (12,450,065)
Total (expense)/income    (145,892,974)    31,592,401

Expenses
Management fees 9    (6,629,406)    (7,092,822)
Administration fees 9    (344,797)    (371,067)
Depositary fees 9    (278,271)    (287,869)
Operating expenses 6    349,343    (306,810)
Total operating expenses    (6,903,131)    (8,058,568)

Net (loss)/profit before finance costs and taxation    (152,796,105)    23,533,833

Finance costs
Distributions 8    (6,307,001)    (37,921)
Bank interest expense 2    (113,152)    (95,585)
Total finance costs    (6,420,153)    (133,506)

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders 
of redeemable participating shares before tax    (159,216,258)    23,400,327

Taxation
Withholding tax on dividends and other investment income    (1,173,303)    (1,631,334)
Total taxation    (1,173,303)    (1,631,334)

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders 
of redeemable participating shares    (160,389,561)    21,768,993

 

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing activities. There were no gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.



The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

Barings Dynamic 
Asset Allocation 

Fund 
30 April 2020

Barings Dynamic 
Asset Allocation 

Fund 
30 April 2019

Notes £ £
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating 
shares at the beginning of the financial year    1,806,601,574    1,841,148,879
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of 
redeemable participating shares    (160,389,561)    21,768,993
Issue of redeemable participating shares during the financial year 4    186,893,403    326,876,658
Redemption of redeemable participating shares during the 
financial year 4    (458,415,291)    (383,261,204)
Income equalisation 8    (100,447)    68,248
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating  
shares at the end of the financial year    1,374,589,678    1,806,601,574
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1. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance Irish Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial 
Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) as issued 
by the UK Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”), and Irish law, comprising the Companies Act 2014 (as amended). Accounting 
standards generally accepted in Ireland in preparing financial statements giving a true and fair view are those issued by the 
Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”). 

The format and certain wording of the financial statements have been adapted from that contained in the Companies Act 2014 
(as amended) so that, in the opinion of the Directors, it more appropriately reflects the nature of the Company’s business as an 
investment company.  

The Company meets all the conditions set out in FRS 102, Section 7, and consequently has availed of the exemption available 
to certain funds not to prepare a statement of cash flows. 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of the judgements made about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial 
assets and financial liabilities, including derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss. These financial 
statements were prepared on the going concern basis.

The registered number for the Company is 408058.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Fair value measurement
By fully adopting FRS 102, in accounting for its financial instruments, a reporting entity is required to apply either: a) the full 
requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, b) the recognition and 
measurement provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and only the disclosure requirements 
of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, or c) the recognition and measurement 
provisions of IFRS 9 Financial instruments and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments 
and Other Financial Instruments. The Company has chosen to implement (b) the recognition and measurement provisions of 
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic 
Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments.

The use of IAS 39 recognition and measurement provisions is in line with the pricing policy, which outlines that the fair value of 
financial assets and financial liabilities be valued at the last traded prices for all trades received up until 5p.m. (Irish time), the 
valuation point for the Fund.

(b) Foreign exchange translation
Functional and presentation currency
The Company's financial statements are presented in Pound sterling which is the functional currency (the “functional currency”). 
The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The functional and 
presentation currency of the Fund is Pound sterling, as the majority of unit classes in the Funds are subscribed in Pound sterling.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional and presentation currency using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Classification
The Fund classifies its investments in Investment Funds, debt instruments, direct equities and exchange traded funds, futures, 
options, forward foreign currency transactions (“FFCTs”) as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception are those that are managed 
and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the Fund’s documented investment strategy. The 
Company’s policy is for Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) and the Board of Directors to evaluate the 
information about these financial assets on a fair value basis together with other related financial information. 

Recognition/derecognition
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date – the date on which the Fund commits to purchasing 
or selling the investment. The financial statements include all the trades received up until the valuation point for the Fund as 
disclosed on page 2. Any trades received subsequent to that point are not reflected in the financial statements. Investments are 
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Fund has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial assets and financial liabilities classified 
as at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ are calculated using the First In First Out (“FIFO”) method. They represent the difference 
between an instrument's initial carrying amount and disposal amount, or cash payments or receipts made on derivative contracts 
(excluding payments or receipts on collateral margin accounts for such instruments).

Measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs 
are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value 
of the ‘financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income for the financial year in which they arise.

Fair value estimation
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. Under the recognition and measurement provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement, the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly 
traded derivatives and trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date.

The Fund invests in both exchange-traded and non-exchange-traded Investment Funds. The fair value of the investments in 
Investment Funds is based on the quoted market price or the latest available unaudited Net Asset Value.

Investments for which market quotations from recognised liquid exchanges or over-the-counter markets are not readily available 
are valued at their fair values as determined in good faith by the Investment Manager.

In this respect, investments in other Investment Funds which are not publicly traded are normally valued at the underlying 
unaudited Net Asset Value as advised by the managers or administrators of these Investment Funds, unless the Investment 
Manager is aware of good reasons why such a valuation would not be the most appropriate indicator of fair value. Such values 
may differ significantly from values that would have been used had ready markets existed, and the differences could be material. 
The valuation of the investments is done on a regular basis.

The Company’s fair valuation input utilised the last traded market price for both financial assets and financial liabilities where the 
last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread, 
management would determine the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value. 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is 
determined by using valuation techniques. Unquoted investments are valued in accordance with the most recent valuation made 
by the Manager. In the absence of a price being available for a security, the Directors of the Company could determine such a 
valuation where appropriate. 

The Fund uses a variety of methods and made assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at the Statement of 
Financial Position date. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, discounted 
cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

(d) Forward foreign currency transactions
Forward foreign currency transactions (“FFCTs”) are recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. All forwards are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as 
liabilities when fair value is negative. Any changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The fair value of forwards that are not exchange traded is estimated at the amount that the Company would receive or pay to 
terminate the contract at the year end date taking into account current market conditions and the current creditworthiness of the 
counterparties.

The unrealised gain or loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts is calculated as the difference between the 
contract price and the forward price as at financial year end.

(e) Future contacts
A futures contract is an agreement between two parties to buy and sell a security, index or currency at a specific price or rate 
at a future date. Upon entering into a futures contract, the Fund is required to deposit with a broker an amount of cash or cash 
equivalents equal to a certain percentage of the contract amount. This is known as the “initial cash margin”. Subsequent payments 
(“variation margin”) are made or received by the Fund each day, depending on the daily fluctuation in the value of the contract.

The daily changes in contract value are recorded as unrealised gains or losses, and the Fund recognised a realised gain or loss 
when the contract is closed. Unrealised gains and losses on futures contracts are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.

(f) Options
When the Fund purchases an option, an amount equal to fair value which is based on the premium paid is recorded as an asset. 
When the Fund writes an option, an amount equal to fair value which is based on the premium received by the Fund is recorded 
as a liability. When options are closed, the difference between the premium and the amount paid or received, net of brokerage 
commissions, or the full amount of the premium if the option expires worthless, is recognised as a gain or loss and is presented 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within the net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss.

(g) Subsidiaries and consolidation
Any subsidiary that is held as part of an investment portfolio is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised 
in profit or loss. All subsidiaries held by the Company are held as part of an investment portfolio and held for trading, and are 
therefore measured at fair value through profit or loss.

This is a departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 2014, which requires the asset to be held at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value, for the overriding purpose of giving a true and fair view in these financial statements.

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)
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The following funds, are held as part of the Company's investment portfolio, are considered subsidiaries of the Company:

Underlying Fund Share class Currency

NAV of 
underlying 

Fund as at 30 
April 2020

Profit and 
loss of the 
underlying 

Fund
Financial year-end of 
the underlying Fund

Barings US Short Duration High Yield 
Bond Component Fund

Class X USD 
Inc US$ 70,845,010 (5,835,415) 31 December 2019

Barings Global Flexible Allocation Fund
Class X EUR 
Acc € 42,559,861 (3,027,919) 30 April 2020

Barings European High Yield Bond 
Fund

Class F GBP 
Inc £ 426,619,013 (67,447,150) 31 December 2019

Barings European Opportunities Fund
Class X GBP 
Acc € 156,720,995 (19,677,955) 30 April 2020

Barings Global Dividend Champions 
Fund

Class A USD 
Acc US$ 59,392,625 (25,290) 30 April 2020

Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund
Class X USD 
Acc US$ 39,778,553 (1,758,737 30 April 2020

Barings US High Yield Bond 
Component Fund

Class X USD 
Acc US$ 210,196,464 (27,892,444) 31 December 2019

 

(h) Income
Interest income and interest expense

Interest income and interest expense are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for all debt instruments and 
cash using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
asset or financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant year. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of the financial 
instrument, or a shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest 
income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment 
loss.

Dividend income

Dividends are credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the dates on which the relevant securities are listed as 
"ex-dividend". Dividend income is shown gross of any irrecoverable withholding taxes, which are disclosed separately in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, and net of any tax credits. 

(i) Expenses
The Company is responsible for all normal operating expenses, including audit fees, stamp and other duties, and charges 
incurred on the acquisition and realisation of investments. Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

(j) Receivables 
Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition origination. 
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment.

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Subsidiaries and consolidation (continued)
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(k) Payables
Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
The difference between the proceeds and the amounts payable are recognised over the year of the payable using the effective 
interest method.

(l) Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. 

(m) Redeemable participating shares
Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the shareholder’s option and are classified as financial liabilities. The 
accounting policy for recognition of subscriptions and redemptions is that they are recorded effective from the trade date for 
financing reporting purposes.

The redeemable participating share can be put back into the Company on any business day of the Fund for cash equal to a 
proportionate share of the Company’s Net Asset Value. The redeemable participating share is carried at the redemption amount 
that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the shareholder exercised their right to put the share back into the 
Company.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents, margin cash and bank overdrafts
Cash comprises current deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised 
cost.

(o) Transaction costs
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or 
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed 
of the financial instrument. When a financial asset or financial liability is recognised initially, an entity shall measure it at its fair 
value through profit or loss plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or 
financial liability. They include fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers or dealers. Transaction costs are included 
in the ‘net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for each individual Fund. See note 9, ‘Significant agreements and fees’, for further information on transaction costs.

(p) Distributions 
Declared and proposed distributions to holders of participating shares are classified as finance costs in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income when they are ratified by the annual general meeting or declared by the Company. Note 8  discloses all 
distributions declared and paid during the year. It is intended to make a distribution when net income is available. A distribution 
on the Fund is only paid on Class I GBP Inc and Class X GBP Inc. The other classes of shares are accumulating and therefore 
do not pay any income distributions. Distributions are made quarterly no later than 31 January, 30 April, 31 July and 31 October.

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash deposits of £109,688,002 (30 April 2019: £72,171,157) are held with the Northern Trust Company (“TNTC”). Cash held 
as collateral for derivative purposes are £7,820,000 (30 April 2019: £9,230,000) with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, 
and £7,192,243 (30 April 2019: £3,500,242) with Union Bank Switzerland (“UBS”). All cash held with Canadian Imperial Bank of 
Commerce and UBS is/was held as collateral for derivative purposes.

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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4. Redeemable shares

The authorised share capital of the Company is €2 divided into two subscriber shares of €1 each and 1,000,000,000,000 
participating shares of no par value. The subscriber shares have been issued and are held beneficially by the AIFM and Baring 
Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”). None of the shares issued by the Company carry preference rights or 
rights of pre-emption.

The subscriber shares entitle the holders to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company, but this does not entitle the 
holders to participate in the dividends or net assets of the Company except to the extent of the initial subscription and simple 
interest accrued thereon at normal commercial rates.

The redeemable participating shares entitle the holders to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company and to participate 
equally on a pro rata basis in the dividends and net assets of the Company, save in the case of dividends declared prior to 
becoming a shareholder.

The Company may subject to the provisions of the Articles and in accordance with the requirements of the CBI create and 
issue at its discretion new classes of shares ("side pocket class") to  which assets (and liabilities arising in connection with such 
assets) of the Company are allocated at the discretion of the Directors at any time after the acquisition thereof, as being or having 
become investments that are illiquid or otherwise difficult to value or realise. Shares in a side pocket class shall be redeemable 
only when the investments attributable to such side pocket classes become liquid, mature or are otherwise disposed of.

The creation of a side pocket class will involve the Company effecting a pro-rata reduction in the number of shares held by a 
shareholder in the Company excluding the assets and liabilities attributable to the side pocket class and creating for the benefit 
of such shareholder a corresponding pro-rata interest in the side pocket class.

Side pocket classes will not be able to accept any subscription or redemption orders. A shareholder that redeems from the Fund 
before the side pocket class is liquidated will receive redemption proceeds from the holding in the Fund less the holding in the 
side pocket class.

On 14 April 2020, notice was provided to Shareholders that the Directors had determined to establish side-pocket classes of the 
Fund. The side-pocket classes were deemed necessary by the Directors due to the extreme market volatility and the exceptional 
circumstances in the UK property market following the reaction to the COVID-19 outbreak, which meant that the property funds 
that the Fund has invested in have been suspended due to an inability to accurately or fairly value the funds. The transfer of 
these value affected investments into the side-pocket classes was implemented by a compulsory redemption and subsequent 
subscription into newly launched side-pocket share classes. Shareholders received written confirmation from the Administrator 
evidencing the transfer. Class SP GBP Acc and Class SP USD Hedged were both launched on 14 April 2020. The Directors have 
waived the investment management fee of the side-pocket classes. For further details see the Schedule of Investments.

A summary of the shareholders activity during the current financial year and previous financial year is detailed below:

Financial year ended 30 April 2020
1.01Class I GBP 

Acc 
No. of shares

1.04Class X GBP 
Acc 

No. of shares

1.03Class I USD 
Hedged Acc 

No. of shares
Balance as at 1 May 2019    6,396,198    2,122,314    99,135
Issued    462,998    –    10,498
Redeemed    (2,042,767)    (145,668)    (4,152)
Balance as at 30 April 2020    4,816,429    1,976,646    105,481



28

Barings Alpha Funds Plc
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

1.02Class I GBP 
Inc 

No. of shares

1.05Class X GBP 
Inc 

No. of shares

9.02Class SP USD 
Hedged 

No. of shares*
Balance as at 1 May 2019    275,892    1,988,577    –
Issued    383,766    –    11,778
Redeemed    (82,909)    (263,218)    –
Balance as at 30 April 2020    576,749    1,725,359    11,778

9.01Class SP GBP 
Acc 

No. of shares**
Balance as at 1 May 2019    –
Issued    509,375
Redeemed    –
Balance as at 30 April 2020    509,375

* The Class SP USD Hedged was launched on 14 April 2020.
** The Class SP GBP Acc was launched on 14 April 2020.

Financial year ended 30 April 2019
1.01Class I GBP 

Acc 
No. of shares

1.04Class X GBP 
Acc 

No. of shares

1.03Class I USD 
Hedged Acc 

No. of shares
Balance as at 1 May 2018    6,809,150    3,593,738    108,192
Issued    500,561    –    16,576
Redeemed    (913,513)    (1,471,424)    (25,633)
Balance as at 30 April 2019    6,396,198    2,122,314    99,135

1.02Class I GBP 
Inc 

No. of shares*

1.05Class X GBP 
Inc 

No. of shares**
Balance as at 1 May 2018    –    –
Issued    275,892    1,988,577
Redeemed    –    –
Balance as at 30 April 2019    275,892    1,988,577

* Class I GBP Inc shares launched on 30 November 2018.
** Class X GBP Inc shares launched on 12 February 2019.

 

4. Redeemable shares (continued)
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5. Other payables and accrued expenses

30 April 2020 
£

30 April 2019 
£

Administration fees payable    (145,170)    (142,303)
Audit fees payable    (22,500)    (29,820)
Depositary fees payable    (111,047)    (124,760)
Directors fee payable    (8,352)    (4,013)
Legal fees payable    –    (32,948)
Management fees payable    (429,439)    (618,570)
Professional fees payable    –    (336,517)
Other operating expenses payable    (48,139)    (108,339)

   (764,647)    (1,397,270)

6. Operating expenses

30 April 2020 
£

30 April 2019 
£

Audit fees    (22,500)    (27,886)
Directors' fee    (20,058)    24,774
Legal fees    (5,405)    (50,759)
Professional services    336,517    (163,289)
Other operating expenses    60,789    (89,650)

   349,343    (306,810)

7. Net fair value on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The following table analyses the realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments and currencies from the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on page 20 .

30 April 2020 
£

30 April 2019 
£

Realised gains on sale of investments    98,019,811    140,114,996
Realised losses on sale of investments    (158,589,253)    (73,888,995)
Realised currency gains    116,708,127    72,810,250
Realised currency losses    (139,993,029)    (120,271,901)
Unrealised gains on investments    51,944,061    101,712,435
Unrealised losses on investments    (154,743,878)    (143,681,308)
Unrealised currency gains    1,629,271    11,206,462
Unrealised currency losses    (10,210,760)    (452,004)

   (195,235,650)    (12,450,065)
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8. Distributions

The following distributions were declared by the Fund during the financial years ended 30 April 2020 and 30 April 2019:

Distribution 
frequency

Distributed 
amount paid* 
30 April 2020

£

Income 
equalisation** 

£

Class I GBP Inc Quarterly 649,701 28,185
Class X GBP Inc Quarterly 5,657,300 72,262

6,307,001 100,447

Distribution 
frequency

Distributed 
amount paid* 
30 April 2019

£

Income 
equalisation** 

£

Class I GBP Inc Quarterly 37,921 68,248
37,921 68,248

* The distributions has ex-date of 1 February 2020 which were paid during the current financial year. These distributions with an ex-date of 1
February 2019 reflect the undistributed income on the Fund as at 31 December 2019.
**Income equalisation relates to the dealing activity of distributing classes for the year from 1 May 2019 to 30 April 2020. The income equalisation 
of the distributing classes is disclosed separately in the statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating 
shares for the year ended 30 April 2020.

9. Significant agreements and fees

Management fee
The Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM") is entitled to receive, as remuneration for its services, management fees as 
set out in the Fund's Supplementary Prospectus. The Management fee is 0.55% per annum of the Net Asset Value for Class I 
GBP Inc, Class I GBP Acc and Class I USD Hedged Acc. There is no investment management fee on Class X GBP Inc or Class 
X GBP Acc, which are subject to a separate agreement with the Investment Manager, and is not paid from the Net Asset Value 
of these classes.

The Investment Manager is an investment management company incorporated in London on 6 April 1994. The Investment 
Manager is part of the Barings LLC group and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company 
("MassMutual"). Management fees of £6,629,406 have been charged for the financial year ended 30 April 2020 (30 April 2019: 
£7,092,822), of which £429,439 (30 April 2019: $618,570) was outstanding at the financial year-end.

The Manager will discharge the fees and expenses of the Investment Manager for the discretionary management of the assets 
of the Fund out of its management fee. The management fee is payable monthly in arrears and will be calculated and accrued by 
reference to the value of the Net Asset Value of the Fund as at each dealing day.

The Directors have decided to waive the investment management fee of the side pocket classes.

Administration fee
In consideration of the services performed, Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited (the 
“Administrator”) is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund an annual fee, accrued and calculated on each dealing day 
and payable monthly in arrears, of 0.015% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund (plus VAT thereon, if any). The administration fee 
is subject to an annual minimum fee of £20,000.
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The Administrator is entitled to all of its reasonable, agreed upon transaction, transfer agency and other charges (which will be at 
normal commercial rates) and other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses out of the assets of the Fund (plus VAT thereon, if any). 
The total administration fee for the year ended 30 April 2020 was £344,797 (30 April 2019: £371,067), of which £145,170 (30 April 
2019: £142,303) was outstanding at the financial year-end. 

Depositary fees 
In consideration of the services performed, Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Depositary”) is entitled to 
receive a fee from the Company of 0.0235% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

The Depositary is also entitled to sub-custodian’s fees (which will be charged at normal commercial rates) as well as agreed upon 
transaction charges (which will be at normal commercial rates) and other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (plus VAT thereon, 
if any). The total Depositary fee for the year ended 30 April 2020 was £278,271 (30 April 2019: £287,869), of which £111,047 (30 
April 2019: £124,760) was outstanding at the financial year-end.

Rebate from Investment Funds
The Investment Manager has entered into a number of agreements with the investment managers of Barings and non-Barings 
Investment Funds where the Fund receives a rebate of management fees charged from these Investment Funds. This rebate 
is received by the Fund on a monthly, quarterly or yearly basis depending on the agreement that is in place with the Investment 
Manager. The purpose of the rebates is to reduce the costs to the Fund to the level that would typically be the case with direct 
investments. Rebates are recognised on an accruals basis. 

The Fund invests and trades in other Barings-managed funds throughout the year, and these are deemed to be related parties. 
These investments are detailed in the Schedule of Investments. The Fund receives management fee rebates from some 
other Barings-managed funds. Details of the rebates and the amounts received are disclosed separately in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

Directors’ fees 
James Cleary and David Conway were paid €5,625 and Barbara Healy was paid €6,750 in Director fees during the year. Peter 
Clark, Timothy Schulze and Julian Swayne through employment with Barings LLC and its subsidiaries are not entitled to fees 
from the Company.

Alan Behen and Paul Smyth, through employment with the AIFM are not entitled to fees from the Company. While these Directors 
don’t receive fees from the Company directly for their role as Directors, they are paid through their employment with Barings LLC, 
its subsidiaries and the AIFM.

Auditors’ remuneration
30 April 2020 

€
30 April 2019 

€
Statutory audit fee    20,240    20,240
Total audit fee    20,240     20,240

9. Significant agreements and fees (continued)

Administration fee (continued)
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Transaction costs
The Fund’s transaction costs at 30 April 2020 and 30 April 2019 are included in the Net fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss under the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The transaction costs incurred by the Fund for the
financial year ended 30 April 2020 were £545,586 (30 April 2019: £570,958).

10. Related party transactions

Julian Swayne and Peter Clark are employed by Barings Investment Services Limited. Timothy Schulze is connected to the
AIFM through employment with Barings LLC. Alan Behen and Paul Smyth are employees of the AIFM. Jim Cleary, David
Conway and Barbara Healy are all non-executive Directors, independent of the Investment Manager. All of the Directors are
also Directors of the AIFM. The AIFM will discharge the fees and expenses of the Investment Manager out of its own fee. The
Investment Manager is part of the Barings LLC group and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance
Company (“MassMutual”). Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Significant shareholders
The following table details significant concentrations in shareholdings of the Fund or instances where the shares are beneficially
held by other Investment Funds managed by the Investment Manager or one of its affiliates. As at 30 April 2020, the following
had significant shareholdings in the Fund:

Total % of shareholders with 
beneficial interest greater than 20% 

of the shares in issue 

Total % of shares held by 
Investment Funds managed 

by Baring International 
Fund Managers (Ireland) 

Limited or affiliates 

20.33% (30 April 2019: Nil) -% (30 April 2019: -%) 

11. Financial risk management

In accordance with FRS 102: Disclosure, this note details the way in which the Fund managed risks associated with the use of
financial instruments.

The Fund is exposed to a variety of financial risks in pursuing its stated investment objective and policy. These risks are defined in
FRS 102 as market risk (which in turn includes price risk, foreign currency risk, and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk.
The Fund takes exposure to these risks to generate investment returns on its portfolio, although these risks can also potentially
result in a reduction in the Fund’s net assets.

The Investment Manager will use its best endeavours to minimise the potentially adverse effects of these risks on the Fund’s
performance where it can do so while still managing the investments of the Fund in a way that is consistent with the Fund’s
investment objective.

The investment objective of the Fund is disclosed in the Prospectus and in the Investment Objective and Policy on page 3.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the Statement of Financial Position date and the risk management
policies employed by the Company are discussed below. These policies have remained substantially unchanged since the
beginning of the financial year to which these financial statements relate.

Fund name 

Number of 
shareholders with 
beneficial interest 
greater than 20% 

of the shares in 
issue 

Barings Dynamic Asset 
Allocation Fund 1 (30 April 2019: Nil) 
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Market risk 
Market risk embodied the potential for both losses and gains and included foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk, 
which are discussed in detail under separate headings within this note.

The Fund’s exposure to market risk is that the value of assets would generally fluctuate with, among other things, general 
economic conditions, the condition of certain financial markets, international political events and developments or trends in any 
particular industry that the Fund invests in.

The Fund’s market risk is managed on a daily basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with policy and procedures in 
place. The Fund’s overall market positions are reported to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis.

As the majority of the financial instruments are carried at fair value through the profit or loss, all changes in market conditions 
would have directly impacted the net assets of the Fund.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is defined in FRS 102 as “the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates”. This risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other 
than the functional currency in which they are measured. The Fund is exposed to foreign currency risk as assets and liabilities 
of the Fund may have been denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Fund, which is the US dollar. 
The fluctuations in the rate of exchange between the currency in which the asset or liability is denominated and the functional 
currency could have resulted in an appreciation or depreciation in the fair value of those assets and liabilities. The Investment 
Manager is permitted but not obligated to use hedging techniques to attempt to offset market and foreign currency risk.

Foreign exchange transactions and other currency contracts may also be used to provide protection against exchange risks or 
to actively overlay currency views onto the Funds’ currency exposure resulting from investing in foreign markets. Such contracts 
may, at the discretion of the Investment Manager, be used to hedge some or all of the exchange risk/foreign currency risk arising 
as a result of the fluctuation between the denominated currency of the Funds and the currencies in which the Funds’ investments 
are denominated, or to pursue an active currency overlay strategy.

A Fund may have (but is not obliged to) to enter into certain currency-related transactions in order to hedge the currency exposure 
of the assets of a Fund attributable to a particular class into the currency of denomination of the relevant class. Any financial 
instruments used to implement such strategies with respect to one or more classes shall be assets/liabilities of a Fund as a 
whole but will be attributable to the relevant class(es), and the gains/losses on, and costs of, the relevant financial instruments 
will accrue solely to the relevant class.

Any currency exposure of a class may not be combined with or offset against that of any other class of a Fund. The currency 
exposure of the assets attributable to a class may not be allocated to other classes. A class will not be leveraged as a result of 
currency hedging transactions, so that the use of such hedging instruments shall have in no case exceeded 100% of the Net 
Asset Value attributable to the relevant class of a Fund. 

In accordance with the Company’s policy, the Investment Manager monitored the Fund’s currency exposures on a daily basis and 
reported regularly to the Board of Directors, which reviews the information provided by the Investment Manager on any significant 
exposures at its periodic meetings.

 

 

 

 

 

11. Financial risk management (continued)
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The table below represents the Fund’s exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to foreign currencies of the 
monetary assets and liabilities as at 30 April 2020 and 30 April 2019. All amounts are stated in the functional currency of the Fund.

30 April 2020

Financial assets at 
fair value through 

profit or loss 
£

Cash 
and cash 

equivalents 
£

Other assets 
and liabilities 

£
Derivatives 

£
Net exposure 

£
% of Net 

Assets
AUD 2,096,981 654,819 – – 2,751,800 0.20
BRL – 48,261 – – 48,261 –
CAD – 5,708 – – 5,708 –
CHF – 35,771 (52) (5,136,867) (5,101,148) (0.37)
DKK – 3,736 (4) – 3,732 –
EUR 193,807,821 1,621,798 6,162,545 (226,946,311) (25,354,147) (1.84)
HKD 173,148 15,677 – – 188,825 0.01
JPY 12,329,583 720,949 113,329 (34,039,446) (20,875,585) (1.52)
KRW 8,075,673 – – – 8,075,673 0.59
MXN 20,984,655 39,825 620,801 – 21,645,281 1.57
RUB – 46,770 – – 46,770 –
TRY – 2,890 1 – 2,891 –
USD 607,349,853 87,747,425 (1,438,691) (416,317,194) 277,341,393 20.18
ZAR – 4,329 4 – 4,333 –

30 April 2019

Financial assets at 
fair value through 

profit or loss 
£

Cash 
and cash 

equivalents 
£

Other assets 
and liabilities 

£
Derivatives 

£
Net exposure 

£
% of Net 

Assets
AUD 1,185,650 5,399 – – 1,191,049 0.07
CAD – 5,702 – – 5,702 –
CHF – 33,371 (4,704,163) – (4,670,792) (0.26)
DKK – 3,696 (4) – 3,692 –
EUR 198,999,566 3,013,394 (237,863,030) – (35,850,070) (1.98)
HKD 186,236 8,277 – – 194,513 0.01
JPY 31,273,883 9,332,367 (103,999,407) – (63,393,157) (3.51)
KRW 4,694,557 – – – 4,694,557 0.26
MXN 26,125,648 2,420 819,677 – 26,947,745 1.49
TRY – 3,194 10 – 3,204 –
USD 748,893,029 9,785,339 (541,224,665) – 217,453,703 12.04

Sensitivity Analysis

The below currency sensitivity analysis information is a relative estimate of risk and is not intended to be a precise and accurate 
number. The calculations are based on historical data. Future price movements could vary significantly from those experienced 
in the past.

11. Financial risk management (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
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At 30 April 2020, had the exchange rate between the base currency of the Fund and other currencies increased or decreased by 
5% (30 April 2019: 5%) with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease in the value of the Net Assets attributable 
to holders of redeemable participating units would be as follows:

Barings Dynamic 
Asset Allocation 

Fund 
£ 

30 April 2020

Barings Dynamic 
Asset Allocation 

Fund 
£ 

30 April 2019
AUD 137,590 59,552
BRL 2,413 –
CAD 285 285
CHF (255,057) (233,540)
DKK 187 185
EUR (1,267,707) (1,792,504)
HKD 9,441 9,726
JPY (1,043,779) (3,169,658)
KRW 403,784 234,728
MXN 1,082,264 1,347,387
RUB 2,339 –
TRY 145 160
USD 13,867,070 10,872,685
ZAR 217 –

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is defined in FRS 102 as “the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates”.

The Fund is exposed to interest rate risk on the interest earned on its debt investments, cash and bank balances.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities held by the Fund, with the exception of cash at bank balances and overdrawn 
cash, are not directly exposed to interest rate risk. The Fund is exposed to interest rate risk on the interest earned on their cash 
and bank balances and paid on overdrawn cash. This exposure is not considered to be significant.

Interest rate (duration) risks are managed by the Investment Manager, whose management of duration risk is monitored through 
regular performance reviews with senior managers as well as through monthly peer reviews of the Fund’s positioning held with 
senior managers. The Investment Manager is authorised to initiate fixed-income trades within pre-set limits. 

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s interest rate exposures on a daily basis and 
reports regularly to the AIFM, who reviews the information provided by the Investment Manager on significant exposures at its 
periodic meetings.
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The following table details the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the Fund's assets and liabilities at fair value, 
categorised by maturity date and measured by the carrying value of the assets and liabilities at 30 April 2020 and 30 April 2019:

30 April 2020 
Barings Dynamic Asset 
Allocation Fund Within 1 year 

£
1-5 years 

£

Greater than 
5 years 

£

Non-interest 
bearing 

£
Total 

£
Assets – – – – –
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss: – – – – –
- Investments 48,524,590 7,394,500 160,070,463 1,009,678,437 1,225,667,990
- Forward foreign exchange 
contracts – – – 8,276,814 8,276,814
- Futures – – – 17,948,905 17,948,905
Other receivables – – – 14,611,890 14,611,890
Cash and cash equivalents 109,688,002 – – – 109,688,002
Cash collateral receivable from 
brokers 16,592,243 – – – 16,592,243
Total assets 174,804,835 7,394,500 160,070,463 1,050,516,046 1,392,785,844

– – – – –
Liabilities – – – – –
Financial liabilities held for trading – – – – –
- Forward foreign exchange 
contracts – – – (13,376,791) (13,376,791)
- Futures – – – (390,458) (390,458)
- Options – – – (1,920,149) (1,920,149)
Cash collateral payable to brokers (1,580,000) – – – (1,580,000)
Other payables and accrued 
expenses – – – (928,768) (928,768)
Net assets attributable to holders 
of redeemable shares – – – (1,374,589,678) (1,374,589,678)
Total liabilities (1,580,000) – – (1,391,205,844) (1,392,785,844)

Net exposure 173,224,835 7,394,500 160,070,463 – –

11. Financial risk management (continued)
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30 April 2019:
Barings Dynamic Asset 
Allocation Fund Within 1 year 

£
1-5 years 

£

Greater than 
5 years 

£

Non-interest 
bearing 

£
Total 

£
Assets – – – – –
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss: – – – – –
- Investments 255,758,225 47,279,813 96,116,915 1,290,946,120 1,690,101,073
- Forward foreign exchange 
contracts – – – 7,988,922 7,988,922
- Futures – – – 5,250,775 5,250,775
Other receivables – – – 58,132,966 58,132,966
Cash and cash equivalents 72,171,157 – – – 72,171,157
Cash collateral receivable from 
brokers 12,730,242 – – – 12,730,242
Total assets 340,659,624 47,279,813 96,116,915 1,362,318,783 1,846,375,135

– – – – –
Liabilities – – – – –
Financial liabilities held for trading – – – – –
- Forward foreign exchange 
contracts – – – (5,365,459) (5,365,459)
Other payables and accrued 
expenses – – – (34,408,102) (34,408,102)
Net assets attributable to holders 
of redeemable shares – – – (1,806,601,574) (1,806,601,574)
Total liabilities – – – (1,846,375,135) (1,846,375,135)

Net exposure 340,659,624 47,279,813 96,116,915 – –

Sensitivity analysis 

Based on the portfolios’ composition as at 30 April 2020, the corresponding (decrease)/increase in Net Assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating units, from an increase/(decrease) in average interest rates would be as follows:

Barings Alpha Funds Barings Alpha Funds
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

Interest Rate change % % Effect on NAV % Effect on NAV
-0.50% 0.46% 0.30%
-0.75% 0.69% 0.44%
-1.00% 0.93% 0.59%

Barings Alpha Funds Barings Alpha Funds
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

Interest Rate change % % Effect on NAV % Effect on NAV
0.50% -0.46% -0.30%
0.75% -0.69% -0.44%
1.00% -0.93% -0.59%

Market price risk
Market price risk is defined in FRS 102 as “the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument or its future cash flows will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices”.  

11. Financial risk management (continued)
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The Fund’s assets consist principally of Investment Funds, debt instruments, direct equities and exchange traded funds, futures, 
options, and forward foreign currency transactions. The values of these instruments are determined by market forces and there 
is accordingly a risk that market prices can change in a way that is adverse to the Fund’s performance. The Fund has adopted 
a number of investment restrictions, which are set out in the Fund’s Prospectus, which limit the exposure of the Fund to adverse 
changes in the price of any individual financial asset. 

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s positions on a daily basis and reports regularly 
to the Board of Directors, which reviews the information on the Fund’s overall market exposures provided by the Investment 
Manager at its periodic meetings. 

The Investment Manager uses three techniques to help in the risk management process: monitoring of compliance and quantitative 
limits, prevention of limit breaches, and trade monitoring. These techniques allowed the Investment Manager to ensure that the 
Fund remains in compliance with the restrictions in the Prospectus and the CBI’s AIF Rulebook by which the Fund is governed.

In addition, the Investment Manager manages the exposure of the portfolio to the risk of adverse changes in the general level of 
market prices, as determined by market forces, through adhering to its formal risk management process, which includes the use 
of systems and technology to monitor overall market and position risk on a daily basis. Such market forces include the impact of 
COVID-19, the duration and full effects of which are still uncertain. The Investment manager now includes a COVID-19 stress 
test on a daily basis. This scenario test takes risk factor levels at 31 December 2019 and shocks them to levels observed on 31 
March 2020 and re-values the position.

The maximum risk arising from an investment except for derivatives is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. 
The overall market exposures and concentration of risk can be seen on the Schedule of Investments and Statement of Financial 
Position of the Fund. The Fund’s market price risk is affected by three components: changes in market prices, currency exchange 
rates and interest rate risk. The Fund’s exposure to market risk is disclosed in the Schedule of Investments. 

Sensitivity Analysis

The below price sensitivity analysis information is a relative estimate of risk and is not intended to be a precise and accurate 
number. The calculations are based on historical data. Future price movements could vary significantly from those experienced 
in the past.

A 5% increase or decrease in investment prices at 30 April 2020 and 30 April 2019 would have increased or decreased the value 
of investments at fair value through profit or loss as follows:

30 April 2020 
£

30 April 2019 
£

Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund    61,283,400    84,505,054
 

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined in FRS 102 as “the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset”.

The Fund is exposed to weekly cash redemptions of shares, however the Board of Directors is entitled, with the approval of the 
Depositary, to limit the number of shares of any class realised on any dealing day to 10% of the total number of shares of that 
class in issue. The Fund invests the majority of its assets in investment funds, securities and other instruments that are traded 
on an active market and which are considered to be liquid, as they can be readily disposed of in the event that cash needs to be 
raised to meet redemptions or to pay expenses.

11. Financial risk management (continued)
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In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s liquidity on a daily basis and reports regularly 
to the Board of Directors, which reviews the information provided by the Investment Manager on significant exposures at its 
periodic meetings. 

The Fund has an agreed temporary overdraft facility with the Depositary to allow for temporary timing/matching differences on 
trades and subscriptions and redemptions. 

In addition, there is a risk associated with the ability of the Fund to redeem out of the underlying investments in order to meet 
those redemptions. The Investment Fund positions held at 30 April 2020 are not exposed to any gates, redemption terms and or 
any lockup conditions (30 April 2019: same).

Settlement dates for the Fund’s financial derivative instruments are settled on a gross basis are detailed in the Schedule of 
Investments. 

The side pocket classes, Class SP GBP Acc and Class SP USD Hedged, hold investments in UK property funds that have been 
suspended due to the inability to accurately or fairly value the funds due to the COVID-19 outbreak. These investments are 
currently illiquid and shares in the side pocket classes will only be redeemable when the investments become liquid. For further 
details on the investments see the Schedule of Investments.

The table below analyses the Fund’s financial derivative instruments that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity 
groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. 

As at 30 April 2020
Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund Less than 1 

month 
£

1-3 months 
£

Greater than 
3 months 

£
Total 

£
Liabilities – – – –
Open forward foreign currency exchange contracts – – – –
- Inflow 402,407,374 24,658,298 933,190 427,998,862
- Outflow (415,104,219) (25,337,589) (933,845) (441,375,653)
Open Futures contracts – (390,458) – (390,458)
Options written (1,920,149) – – (1,920,149)
Other payables and accrued expenses (2,508,768) – – (2,508,768)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
shares – (1,374,589,678) – (1,374,589,678)
Total (17,125,762) (1,375,659,427) (655) (1,392,785,844)

As at 30 April 2019
Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund Less than 1 

month 
£

1-3 months 
£

Greater than 
3 months 

£
Total 

£
Liabilities – – – –
Open forward foreign currency exchange contracts – – – –
- Inflow 646,033,928 – – 646,033,928
- Outflow (651,399,387) – – (651,399,387)
Other payables and accrued expenses (34,408,102) – – (34,408,102)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
shares – (1,806,601,574) – (1,806,601,574)
Total (39,773,561) (1,806,601,574) – (1,846,375,135)

As the liability to redeemable participating shareholders represents the capital of the Fund, the management of liquidity risk also 
represents the management of the Fund's capital. 

11. Financial risk management (continued)
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Credit risk
Credit risk is defined in FRS 102 as “the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party 
by failing to discharge an obligation”.  

The Fund will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will bear the risk of settlement default. All transactions 
in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. 

Credit risk arising from receivables from investee funds relate to redemptions or transactions awaiting settlement. Risk relating 
to unsettled receivables is considered small due to the short settlement period involved and the due diligence conducted on the 
investee funds. 

Credit risk statement

Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (“NTFSIL”) is the appointed Depositary of the Fund, responsible for the safe-
keeping of assets. NTFSIL has appointed The Northern Trust Company (“TNTC”) as its global sub-custodian. Both NTFSIL and 
TNTC are wholly owned subsidiaries of Northern Trust Corporation (“NTC”). As at the year-end date of 30 April 2020, NTC had 
a long-term credit rating from Standard & Poor’s of (A+).

TNTC (as global sub-custodian of NTFSIL) does not appoint external sub-custodians within the US, the UK, Ireland and Canada. 
However, in all other markets, TNTC appoints local external sub-custodians. 

NTFSIL, in the discharge of its depositary duties, verifies the Fund’s ownership of Other Assets, (as defined under Other Assets, 
Art 21(8)(b), of Directive 2011/61/EU), by assessing whether the Fund holds the ownership, based on information or documents 
provided by the Fund or where available, on external evidence. 

TNTC, in the discharge of its delegated depositary duties, holds in custody (i) all financial instruments that may be registered in 
a financial instruments account opened on the books of TNTC and (ii) all financial instruments that can be physically delivered 
to TNTC. TNTC ensures all financial instruments (held in a financial instruments account on the books of TNTC) are held in 
segregated accounts in the name of the Fund, clearly identifiable as belonging to the Fund, and distinct and separate from the 
proprietary assets of TNTC, NTFSIL and NTC. 

In addition, TNTC, as banker, holds cash of the Fund on deposit. Such cash is held on the Statement of Financial Position of 
TNTC. In the event of the insolvency of TNTC, in accordance with standard banking practice, the Fund will rank as an unsecured 
creditor of TNTC in respect of any cash deposits. 

The Insolvency of NTFSIL and or one of its agents or affiliates may cause the Fund’s rights with respect to its assets to be 
delayed.

The Responsible Party manages risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial position of the Depositary, and such risk is 
further managed by the Depositary monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of sub-custodian appointments. The 
counterparties and their credit ratings as at 30 April 2020 are as follows Standard Chartered (BBB+), State Street (A), UBS (A+) 
and Canadian Imperial Bank Corporation (A+).

The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number of regulated counterparties. The 
Fund has counterparty risk in relation to transactions it enters into with brokers, banks and other third parties if the counterparty 
fails to complete any transaction to which the Fund is a party. The counterparties for all derivative types are listed on the Schedule 
of Investments. 

Credit risk arising from receivables relating to unsettled trades is considered small due to the short settlement period involved. 
The maximum exposure related to unsettled trades equals the amounts shown on the Statement of Financial Position. The 
following are deemed past due or impaired assets valued at £nil as at 30 April 2020: Global MENA Financial Assets Fund 
and Low Carbon Accelerator and Nimrod Sea Assets (30 April 2019: Global MENA Financial Assets Fund and Low Carbon 
Accelerator and Nimrod Sea Assets).

11. Financial risk management (continued)
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The net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units at fair value of investments, cash and receivables relating 
to securities exposed to credit risk at year-end amounted to:

30 April 2020 
£

30 April 2019 
£

Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund    1,392,534,692       1,846,113,964
 

At 30 April 2020 and 30 April 2019, the Fund’s exposure to credit risk was as follows:

Portfolio by rating category
Rating 30 April 2020 30 April 2019

% %
Investment grade 28.58 24.68
Non-investment grade 50.58 16.26
Non-rated 20.84 59.06

100.00 100.00

Fair value hierarchy
FRS 102 requires the Funds to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 
inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

• Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
• Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that 

is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
• Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that is not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is determined on the 
basis of the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of 
an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs 
that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the 
significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety required judgement, considering factors specific to 
the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ required significant judgement by the Investment Manager. The Investment 
Manager considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and 
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

11. Financial risk management (continued)
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The following table analyses, within the fair value hierarchy, the Funds’ financial assets and financial liabilitilies measured at fair 
value.

As at 30 April 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets £ £ £ £
Investment Funds 144,094,284 476,732,693 56,913,877 677,740,854
Debt instruments – 215,989,553 – 215,989,553
Direct equities and exchange-traded funds 323,576,839 – 8,330,744 331,937,583
Financial derivative instruments 17,948,905 – – 17,948,905
Open forward foreign currency transactions – 8,276,814 – 8,276,814

485,620,028 700,999,060 65,244,621 1,251,893,709

Financial liabilities
Financial derivative instruments (390,458) (1,920,149) – (2,310,607)
Open forward foreign currency transactions – (13,376,791) – (13,376,791)

(390,458) (15,296,940) – (15,687,398)

Total 485,229,570 685,702,120 65,244,621 1,236,206,311

As at 30 April 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets £ £ £ £
Investment Funds – 794,639,550 – 794,639,550
Debt instruments 314,144,897 85,010,056 – 399,154,953
Direct equities and exchange-traded funds 495,164,811 – 1,141,759 496,306,570
Financial derivative instruments 5,250,775 – – 5,250,775
Open forward foreign currency transactions – 7,988,922 – 7,988,922

814,560,483 887,638,528 1,141,759 1,703,340,770

Financial liabilities
Open forward foreign currency transactions – (5,365,459) – (5,365,459)

– (5,365,459) – (5,365,459)

Total 814,560,483 882,273,069 1,141,759 1,697,975,311
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The following table reconciles fair value changes in Barings Alpha Fund’s level 3 holdings for the financial year ended 30 April 
2020 and financial year ended 30 April 2019. 

Level 3 Reconciliation 30 April 2020 
£

30 April 2019 
£

Opening balance 1,141,759 1,315,517
Transfer to Level 3 64,965,244 –
Purchases – –
Sales (247,905) –
Realised loss recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 59,625 –
Unrealised loss recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (674,102) (173,758)
Closing balance 65,244,621 1,141,759

* Due to the illiquid nature of APQ Global, Crystal Amber, Global MENA Financial Assets Fund, JPEL Private Equity and Low Carbon Accelerator, 
the pricing committee considered that the last applicable traded price did not capture the best reflection of the buying and selling price of these 
stocks fair value. Therefore, it was decided to mark down the price to the book cost value until further notice.
Eurovestech was received as a spin-off from Damille. The company wound up and it is delisted, with trading in the private market. The Pricing 
Committee agreed to value the security using the most recent NAV price from June 2017 accounts (11.5p per share), less 15% discount to 
reflect the illiquidity of the asset and the fact that the company is in liquidation. Price as per the most recent NAV (according to audited financial 
statements) less 15% discount: GBP 0.09945.
Nimrod Sea Assets Ltd is delisted and in liquidation, and the total value of distribution payments received now exceeds the last traded price of 
the asset. The pricing committee therefore agrees to price the asset at nil.
BlackRock UK Property Fund and Schroder Unit Trusts are both held in a side-pocket share class.

 
There have been no transfers during the year from level 1 to level 2 or from level 2 to level 1. The financial assets classified at 
level 3 at 30 April 2020 were £65,244,621 (30 April 2019: £1,141,759).

12. Efficient portfolio management

The Fund may use Financial Derivative Instruments (“FDIs”) for efficient portfolio management. The efficient portfolio management 
purposes for which the Company intends to employ FDIs are reduction of risk, reduction of cost and the generation of additional 
capital or income for the relevant Fund with an appropriate level of risk, taking into account the risk profile of the Fund and the 
general provisions of the AIF Rulebook. The Company may use various types of derivatives for these purposes, including, without 
limitation, forwards, futures, options, swaps (including but not limited to total return swaps, credit default swaps, swaptions and 
IRSs) and contracts for differences for these purposes. 

The Fund have been classified as a non-sophisticated user of FDI (Financial Derivative Instruments) and, as permitted by the 
AIF Rulebook, the Company has adopted a commitment approach (the “Commitment Approach”) in the calculation of global 
exposure for the fund during the financial year. 

In accordance with the AIF Rulebook, the Commitment Approach has been calculated, in the case of forward currency contracts 
(“FCCTs”), by converting the FCCT position into an equivalent position based on the market value of the underlying asset. As the 
FDI are used for hedging purposes, the exposure of the FDI has been calculated and then netted against the instrument being 
hedged. The Global Exposure calculation is performed on a daily basis.

Risk Monitoring of Global Exposure

In no circumstances will the global exposure of the Fund exceed 100% of its Net Asset Value.
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13. NAV per redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 30 April 2020 30 April 2019 30 April 2018
Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund £1,374,589,678 £1,806,601,574 £1,841,148,879

NAV per redeemable participating shares
Class I GBP Acc £173.80 £194.69 £192.63
Class I GBP Inc £91.38 £104.87 –
Class I USD Hedged Acc US$285.04 US$308.08 US$299.35
Class X GBP Acc £128.45 £143.10 £140.81
Class X GBP Inc £89.94 £103.22 –
Class SP GBP Acc* £100.00 – –
Class SP USD Hedged* US$100.05 – –
  
*The Class SP GBP Acc and Class SP USD Hedged were both launched on 14 April 2020.
 

14. Exchange rates

The exchange rates used financial statements to convert to Pound sterling are as follows:

As at 
30 April 2020

As at 
30 April 2019

Australian dollar 1.9111 1.8522
Brazilian real 6.6751 5.1325
Canadian dollar 1.7352 1.7537
Danish Krone 8.5784 8.6845
Euro 1.1502 1.1632
Hong Kong dollar 9.6964 10.2277
Japanese yen 133.3504 145.1940
Mexican peso 29.6675 24.7992
Russian ruble 91.6546 83.7861
South African rand 22.6337 18.6311
South Korean won 1,524.2819 1,522.8589
Swedish krona 12.2728 12.3935
Swiss franc 1.2140 1.3284
Turkish lira 8.7379 7.7821
United States dollar 1.2613 1.3037

15. Soft commission arrangements

The Investment Manager will pay for research from their own books, as commission paid on trades will be “execution only”, which 
is the agreed cost for the broker to settle the trade (30 April 2019:same).

16. Contingent liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities at financial year-end 30 April 2020 and financial year-end 30 April 2019.

17. Taxation

Under current Irish law and practice, the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the 
Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended (the “TCA”). On that basis, it is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income or capital 
gains.
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However, Irish tax may arise if a "chargeable event" occurs. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to shareholders 
or any encashment, redemption, cancellation, transfer or deemed disposal of shares for Irish tax purposes arising as a result of 
holding shares in the Company for a period of eight years or more, or the appropriation or cancellation of shares of a shareholder 
by the Company for the purposes of meeting the amount of tax payable on a gain arising on a transfer.

No Irish tax will arise on the Company in respect of chargeable events due to:

(e) a shareholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the chargeable 
event, provided that a relevant declaration is in place (in accordance with Schedule 2b of the TCA) and the Company is 
not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is no longer 
materially correct; or

(f) a shareholder who is an exempt Irish investor (as defined in Section 739D TCA).
 
Dividends, interest and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Company may be subject to withholding taxes 
imposed by the country from which the investment income/gains are received and such taxes may not be recoverable by the 
Company or its shareholders. 

The Finance Act 2010 provides that the Revenue Commissioners may grant approval for Investment Companies marketed 
outside of Ireland to make payments to non-resident investors without deduction of Irish tax where no relevant declaration is in 
place, subject to meeting “equivalent measures”. An Investment Company wishing to receive approval must apply in writing to 
the Revenue Commissioners, confirming compliance with the relevant conditions.

18. Bank facilities

There is a bank overdraft facility in place with The Northern Trust Company (“TNTC”). An “uncommitted” multi-currency loan 
facility has been made available by TNTC to the Fund. During the financial year ended 30 April 2020 and during the financial year 
ended 30 April 2019, the Fund drew down on this facility.

19. Material changes to the Prospectus

The Fund issued a new Prospectus on 22 May 2019. The following are the material changes made:

• Access to the China Interbank Bond Market (CIBM);
• Addition of Alan Behen and Paul Smyth as Directors of the AIFM.
An updated Prospectus for the Company was also issued on 9 April 2020. The following are the material changes made:

• Enabling the capacity to launch side pocket classes.
There are other immaterial changes to the Prospectus that are not listed above.

20. Significant events 

Alan Behen and Paul Smyth were appointed as Directors of the Company with effect from 11 September 2019.

The Fund issued a new Prospectus on 22 May 2019. An updated Prospectus for the Company was also issued on 9 April 2020. 
The material changes to the Prospectus are outlined in note 19.

On 14 April 2020, the Directors determined to establish side-pocket classes of the Fund. The Class SP GBP Acc and Class SP 
USD Hedged were both launched on 14 April 2020 as a result.

The side-pocket classes were deemed necessary by the Directors due to the extreme market volatility and the exceptional 
circumstances in the UK property market following the reaction to the COVID-19 outbreak, which meant that the property funds 
that the Fund has invested in have been suspended due to an inability to accurately or fairly value the funds. For further details 
please see note 4.

17. Taxation (continued)
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COVID-19
The spread of Covid-19 around the world in the first half of 2020 has caused significant volatility in international markets. There is 
still uncertainty around the breadth and duration of business disruptions related to Covid-19, as well as its impact on international 
economies and, as such, the Company is actively monitoring the extent of the impact to its operations, financial accounting and 
reporting.

Brexit
The United Kingdom (the “UK”) held a referendum on 23 June 2016 on whether to leave or remain in the European Union (the 
“EU”). The outcome of the referendum was in favour of leaving the EU. The UK officially withdrew from the EU on 31 January 
2020 but will continue to follow all of the EU rules and its trading relationship will remain the same until the end of the transitional 
period ending on 31 December 2020.

There are a number of uncertainties in connection with the future of the UK and its relationship with the EU, including the terms 
of the agreement it reaches in relation to its withdrawal from the EU and any agreements it reaches in relation to its future 
relationship with the EU and Barings continues to plan for a number of possible scenarios. Barings is committed to ensuring 
continuity of service for its investors and protecting its business against potential regulatory or other market access barriers 
related to Brexit. In this regard, Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited (“BIFMI”), will continue as the Manager of 
the Company and the Sub-Funds will continue to be registered for distribution into relevant jurisdictions in the EU and elsewhere. 
Portfolio management in respect of European investments will continue to be delegated to Baring Asset Management Limited, a 
UK entity and portfolio management of US investments will continue to be conducted by Barings LLC, a US entity. The custodians 
and administrators of the Sub-Funds are also EU entities. In addition, BIFMI has enhanced its presence in Dublin and recruited 
locally at all levels to staff its new office, reflecting the increased significance of BIFMI’s role within the Barings business.

Whilst the medium to long-term consequences of the decision to leave the EU remain uncertain in any scenario, there could be 
short-term volatility which could have a negative impact on general economic conditions, business and consumer confidence 
in both the UK and EU, which may in turn have negative political, economic and market impacts more widely. The longer-term 
consequences may be affected by the terms of any future arrangements the UK has with the EU. Among other things, the UK’s 
decision to leave the EU could lead to changes in the law and tax treatment of funds, instability in the equity, debt and foreign 
exchange markets, including volatility in the value of sterling or the euro.

There have been no other significant events to the financial year-end which, in the opinion of the Directors, may have had a 
material impact on these financial statements for the financial year ended 30 April 2020.

21. Subsequent events

Mr. Timothy Schulze resigned as Director of the Company with effect from 10 August 2020.

As at the approval date of the financial statements, Blackrock UK Property Fund and Schroder Unit Trusts, the UK property funds 
that the Fund has invested in via the side-pocket classes, remain suspended due to an inability to accurately or fairly value the 
funds.

There have been no other events subsequent to the financial year-end which, in the opinion of the Directors, may have had an 
impact on the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 April 2020.

22. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 20 August 2020.

20. Significant events  (continued)



47

Barings Alpha Funds Plc 
Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Nominal Security
Fair value 

£
% of 

Net Assets

Investment Funds: 49.30% (30 April 2019: 43.99%)

Germany: 8.01% (30 April 2019: 4.67%)
7,564,562 Xtrackers II Emerging Markets Bond UCITS ETF    82,527,395 6.00
1,994,652 Xtrackers II EUR High Yield Corporate Bond UCITS ETF    27,591,822 2.01

    110,119,217 8.01

Global: 3.02% (30 April 2019: 0.00%)
446,190 Amundi Physical Gold ETC    24,062,811 1.75
221,692 Twelve Cat Bond Fund I USD    17,510,733 1.27

    41,573,544 3.02

Guernsey: 0.37% (30 April 2019: 0.00%)
7,218,950 Crystal Amber*    5,041,534 0.37

Ireland: 26.66% (30 April 2019: 22.60%)
762,471 Barings European High Yield Bond    65,526,756 4.77

5,421,437 Barings European Opportunities Fund    86,851,419 6.32
1,114,913 Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund    10,659,892 0.78

206,361 Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund    15,738,644 1.14
3,054,406 Barings Global Flexible Allocation Fund    35,328,764 2.57
1,660,604 Barings US High Yield Bond Component Fund    116,262,642 8.46

500,289 Barings US Short Duration High Yield Bond Component Fund    36,029,881 2.62
107,248 Carador Income Fund    15,730 0.00

    366,413,728 26.66

Japan: 2.00% (30 April 2019: 3.21%)
1,936,779 Baillie Gifford Overseas Growth Funds ICVC - Japanese Fund Class B    27,521,625 2.00

139 Baillie Gifford Overseas Growth Funds ICVC - Japanese Fund Class B Acc    2,230 0.00
365 Legal & General Japan Index Trust I Class Distribution    188 0.00

    27,524,043 2.00

Jersey: 2.13% (30 April 2019: 0.00%)
773,970 BlackRock UK Property Fund****    29,319,377 2.13

Netherlands: 0.00% (30 April 2019: 0.00%)
51 ING Real Estate Eurosiris Fund    29,769 0.00

United Kingdom: 2.97% (30 April 2019: 7.93%)
1 AXA Framlington UK Select Opportunities Fund    1 0.00

986,498 Chenavari Capital Solutions    458,722 0.03
2,311,455 Doric Nimrod Air One    809,009 0.06

582,847 Global MENA Financial Assets Fund**    – 0.00
28,986,867 Legal & General Sterling Corporate Bond Index Fund    17,015,291 1.24

304,391 Low Carbon Accelerator**    – 0.00
559,884 Schroder Unit Trusts****    22,552,966 1.64

    40,835,989 2.97

United States: 4.14% (30 April 2019: 4.63%)
1,477,563 Legal & General US Index Trust    6,982,962 0.51
2,833,221 Neuberger Berman Clo Inc. Inc    16,666,668 1.21
4,196,170 Neuberger Berman High Yield Bond Fund    33,234,023 2.42

    56,883,653 4.14

Total Investment Funds (Cost: £677,294,181)    677,740,854 49.30
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 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)    

Nominal Security
Fair value 

£ 
% of 

Net Assets

Debt instruments: 15.71% (30 April 2019: 22.10%)

Brazil: 3.48% (30 April 2019: 2.53%)
4,400,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 4.75% 14/01/2050    3,143,854 0.23
4,250,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 5.00% 27/01/2045    3,150,394 0.23
4,000,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 5.63% 21/02/2047    3,194,989 0.23

43,981,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 6.00% 07/04/2026    38,407,316 2.79
    47,896,553 3.48

Greece: 2.85% (30 April 2019: 0.10%)
17,708,354 Hellenic Republic Government Bond 3.75% 30/01/2028    17,177,223 1.25
12,131,000 Hellenic Republic Government Bond 3.88% 12/03/2029    11,993,033 0.87

8,750,000 Hellenic Republic Government Bond 4.20% 30/01/2042    10,012,992 0.73
    39,183,248 2.85

Hungary: 0.21% (30 April 2019: 2.62%)
3,202,000 Hungary Government International Bond 5.38% 25/03/2024    2,833,707 0.21

Indonesia: 0.66% (30 April 2019: 0.00%)
5,000,000 Indonesia Government International Bond 3.70% 30/10/2049    3,884,518 0.28
3,000,000 Indonesia Government International Bond 4.75% 08/01/2026    2,580,083 0.19
3,000,000 Indonesia Government International Bond 5.88% 15/01/2024    2,622,036 0.19

    9,086,637 0.66

Italy: 1.03% (30 April 2019: 0.00%)
11,500,000 Republic of Italy Government International Bond 6.00% 04/08/2028    14,110,742 1.03

Mexico: 2.34% (30 April 2019: 1.45%)
593,110,000 Mexican Bonos 7.75% 29/05/2031    20,984,655 1.53
14,000,000 Mexico Government International Bond 1.63% 08/04/2026    11,192,785 0.81

    32,177,440 2.34

Russian Federation: 0.26% (30 April 2019: 0.20%)
4,000,000 Russian Foreign Bond - Eurobond 3.63% 16/09/2020    3,513,105 0.26

Turkey: 1.61% (30 April 2019: 0.99%)
15,600,000 Turkey Government International Bond 4.25% 14/04/2026    10,681,747 0.78

7,790,000 Turkey Government International Bond 5.13% 17/02/2028    5,382,903 0.39
5,000,000 Turkey Government International Bond 5.20% 16/02/2026    4,173,229 0.30
2,400,000 Turkey Government International Bond 7.38% 05/02/2025    1,938,757 0.14

    22,176,636 1.61

Unted Kingdom: 3.27% (30 April 2019: 0.00%)
15,000,000 United Kingdom Treasury Bill 0% 22/06/2020    15,002,350 1.09
30,000,000 United Kingdom Treasury Bill 0% 10/08/2020    30,009,135 2.18

    45,011,485 3.27

Total debt instruments (Cost: £227,883,358)    215,989,553 15.71

Direct equities and exchange-traded funds: 24.15% (30 April 2019: 27.47%)

Australia: 0.15% (30 April 2019: 0.07%)
1,771,956 Orocobre    2,096,981 0.15
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 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)    

Nominal Security
Fair value 

£ 
% of 

Net Assets

 Direct equities and exchange-traded funds: 24.15% (30 April 2019: 27.47%) (continued)   

Belgium: 0.95% (30 April 2019: 0.83%)
80,311 Cofinimmo REITs    8,856,788 0.65

121,777 Umicore    4,167,438 0.30
    13,024,226 0.95

China: 0.01% (30 April 2019: 0.01%)
572,000 Kaisa    173,148 0.01

France: 0.36% (30 April 2019: 1.72%)
106,180 Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield REITs    4,953,090 0.36

Germany: 1.58% (30 April 2019: 1.56%)
1,103,666 Alstria Office REIT-AG    13,100,976 0.95

498,950 TAG Immobilien    8,643,655 0.63
    21,744,631 1.58

Global: 0.59% (30 April 2019: 0.00%)
10,406,653 JPEL Private Equity*    8,051,367 0.59

Guernsey: 0.00% (30 April 2019: 0.94%)
1,293,500 Nimrod Sea Assets Ltd***    – 0.00

Ireland: 4.99% (30 April 2019: 7.47%)
369,333 iShares EUR High Yield Corp Bond UCITS ETF    29,681,922 2.16
733,333 iShares JP Morgan EM Local Government Bond UCITS ETF    30,691,438 2.23

63,099 Source Physical Gold P-ETC ETF    8,260,623 0.60
    68,633,983 4.99

Japan: 0.90% (30 April 2019: 1.73%)
7,600 Aica Kogyo    176,643 0.01

19,700 Aruhi    185,195 0.01
11,800 Bridgestone    295,520 0.02
13,500 Casio    171,149 0.01

8,700 COMSYS    193,373 0.01
1,100 Cosmos Pharmaceutical    234,463 0.02
3,400 Daifuku    189,810 0.01
5,600 Daiichi Sankyo    306,483 0.02
1,900 Daikin Industries    197,279 0.02
4,900 East Japan Railway    286,010 0.02

12,600 Elecom    397,012 0.03
14,900 Fuji    200,055 0.02

5,300 Giken    155,995 0.01
7,300 Insource    130,270 0.01
7,900 Japan Elevator Service    161,710 0.01
2,900 Jeol    69,123 0.01

10,000 Katitas    140,789 0.01
10,400 Komatsu    159,027 0.01
13,300 Kyowa Exeo    260,217 0.02

4,000 MEIJI    221,526 0.02
141,500 Mitsubishi UFJ Financial    455,607 0.03

12,600 Mitsui Fudosan    186,643 0.01
6,800 Murata Manufacturing    303,444 0.02
8,500 NEC    262,469 0.02
8,500 Nichias    137,379 0.01
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 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)    

Nominal Security
Fair value 

£ 
% of 

Net Assets

 Direct equities and exchange-traded funds: 24.15% (30 April 2019: 27.47%) (continued)   

 Japan: 0.90% (30 April 2019: 1.73%) (continued)    
12,100 Nifco    187,938 0.01

8,300 Nihon M&A Center    218,757 0.02
900 Nintendo    297,926 0.02

31,900 Nippon Telegraph & Telephone    577,775 0.04
6,900 Nissan Chemical    211,784 0.02
2,000 Nitori    244,954 0.02
5,800 NOF    153,941 0.01
8,800 Nomura Research Institute    171,847 0.01

15,900 OSG    166,211 0.01
6,700 PALTAC CORPORATION    280,155 0.02
9,300 Pigeon    264,419 0.02
6,400 Recruit    150,982 0.01
3,562 Sakai Moving Service    149,999 0.01

26,400 Sanwa    165,584 0.01
5,500 SCSK    198,173 0.02

11,000 Shimadzu    218,968 0.02
4,300 Shin-Etsu Chemical    383,034 0.03
5,700 SHO-BOND    184,883 0.01
9,700 Sony    498,511 0.04

11,200 Takeda Pharmaceutical    322,426 0.02
10,300 Terumo    272,768 0.02
13,200 TIS    202,968 0.02

7,900 Tokio Marine    297,885 0.02
2,000 Tokyo Electron    340,148 0.03
6,100 Toyota Industries    245,569 0.02
9,000 Toyota Motor    444,787 0.03

    12,329,583 0.90

Netherlands: 0.25% (30 April 2019: 0.40%)
177,970 AMG Advanced Metallurgical    2,376,071 0.17
115,292 Eurocommercial Properties    1,015,160 0.08

    3,391,231 0.25

Republic of South Korea: 0.59% (30 April 2019: 0.26%)
21,580 LG Chem    5,286,559 0.39
43,607 SK Innovation    2,789,114 0.20

    8,075,673 0.59

Singapore: 2.24% (30 April 2019: 0.63%)
389,630 iShares JP Morgan USD Emerging Markets Bond ETF    30,772,535 2.24

United Kingdom: 4.62% (30 April 2019: 3.61%)
525,000 APQ Global*    44,100 0.00
344,799 ETFS Physical Silver    3,895,339 0.28

5,881,924 Eurovestech***    235,277 0.02
370,107 iShares Core GBP Corp Bond UCITS ETF    56,319,182 4.10
152,944 Johnson Matthey    3,047,409 0.22

    63,541,307 4.62

United States: 6.92% (30 April 2019: 8.20%)
115,662 Albemarle    5,632,946 0.41
301,305 iShares Core S&P 500 UCITS ETF (CHIX)    69,589,064 5.06
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 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)    

Nominal Security
Fair value 

£ 
% of 

Net Assets

 Direct equities and exchange-traded funds: 24.15% (30 April 2019: 27.47%) (continued)   

 United States: 6.92% (30 April 2019: 8.20%) (continued)    
201,717 iShares USD Corp Bond UCITS ETF    19,927,818 1.45

    95,149,828 6.92

Total direct equities and exchange-traded funds (Cost: £339,711,827)    331,937,583 24.15

Open Future contracts: 1.31% (30 April 2019: 0.29%)*****
Nominal 
Amount 

£ Description

Unrealised  
gain  

£
% of 

Net Assets
752 Nasdaq 100 Emini CME Futures June 2020    13,978,077 1.02

1,410 MSCI Emerging Market NYF Futures June 2020    3,970,828 0.29
Unrealised gain on open futures contracts    17,948,905 1.31

Open forward foreign currency exchange contracts: 0.60% (30 April 2019: 0.44%)

Currency  
bought

Currency  
sold Counterparty

Maturity 
date

Unrealised  
gain £

% of  
Net Assets

JPY USD 51,516,493
Canadian Imperial 

Bank of Commerce 20/05/2020   1,672,662 0.12
GBP 

110,846,553 EUR 125,848,300
Standard 

Chartered Bank 08/07/2020   1,457,959 0.11
GBP 

47,774,051 USD 58,751,468 State Street 08/07/2020   1,207,923 0.09
GBP 

40,123,064 USD 49,215,713 State Street 08/07/2020   1,114,929 0.08
GBP 

38,228,458 USD 47,001,174 State Street 08/07/2020   975,555 0.07
GBP 

31,866,379 USD 39,167,645 State Street 08/07/2020   822,293 0.06
GBP 

38,000,123 JPY 5,054,605,321 State Street 08/07/2020   501,173 0.04
GBP 

34,572,759 JPY 4,601,115,679 State Street 08/07/2020   438,145 0.03
GBP 706,643 EUR 800,000 State Street 20/05/2020   11,829 0.00
GBP 932,645 USD 1,175,792 State Street 15/07/2020   742 0.00

GBP 1,579 USD 1,966 State Street 15/07/2020   20 0.00
GBP 

5,275,816 EUR 6,040,000
Standard 

Chartered Bank 20/05/2020   29,968 0.00
GBP 

10,309,887 USD 13,000,000
Canadian Imperial 

Bank of Commerce 20/05/2020   3,944 0.00
GBP 

2,711,557 CHF 3,248,000
Canadian Imperial 

Bank of Commerce 08/07/2020   39,672 0.00
Total unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts    8,276,814 0.60

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss    1,251,893,709 91.07
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        Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
 

Options written: (0.14%) (30 April 2019: 0.00%)*****

Description
Base  

Currency
Strike 
price

No. of 
Contracts

Maturity 
date

Fair value 
£

% of  
Net Assets

S&P 500 Index Call Option 3300 5/15/2020 USD 3300.00 (202) 15/05/2020   (7,207) –
S&P 500 Index Put Option 3300 5/15/2020 USD 3000.00 (202) 15/05/2020   (1,912,942) (0.14)
Total options - unrealised losses    (1,920,149) (0.14)

Open Future contracts: (0.03%) (30 April 2019: 0.00%)*****

Nominal 
Amount 

£ Description

Unrealised  
(loss) 

£

 % of  
Net Assets

(201) SGX Nikkei 225 Futures June 2020 (390,458) (0.03)
Unrealised loss on Open Futures contracts (390,458) (0.03)

Open forward foreign currency exchange contracts: (0.97%) (30 April 2019: (0.30%))

Currency 
bought

Currency  
sold Counterparty

Maturity 
date

Unrealised  
loss £

% of  
Net Assets

GBP 
241,575,128 USD 312,638,800

Canadian Imperial 
Bank of Commerce 20/05/2020   (6,273,907) (0.46)

GBP 
124,588,789 EUR 148,514,400 State Street 20/05/2020   (4,398,623) (0.32)

EUR 
20,000,000 GBP 18,600,000

Canadian Imperial 
Bank of Commerce 20/05/2020   (1,229,642) (0.09)

USD 
27,369,320 GBP 22,313,431 State Street 15/07/2020   (621,200) (0.04)

USD 
15,000,000 GBP 12,283,785

Standard 
Chartered Bank 20/05/2020   (392,313) (0.03)

GBP 
4,607,091 JPY 663,412,500

Standard 
Chartered Bank 20/05/2020   (311,915) (0.02)

GBP 
2,374,537 CHF 3,000,000

Standard 
Chartered Bank 20/05/2020   (90,445) (0.01)

USD 
2,401,144 GBP 1,957,481 State Street 15/07/2020   (54,395) 0.00

USD 
1,341,174 GBP 1,066,677 State Street 15/07/2020   (3,697) 0.00

USD 1,966 GBP 1,578 State Street 15/10/2020   (20) 0.00
USD 

1,175,792 GBP 932,267 State Street 15/10/2020   (634) 0.00
Total unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts    (13,376,791) (0.97)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss     (15,687,398) (1.14)
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Fair value  
£

% of 
Net Assets

Total investments at fair value through profit or loss 1,236,206,311 89.93
Cash and cash equivalents 109,688,002 7.98
Cash at broker (margin cash) 16,592,243 1.21
Cash due to broker (margin cash) (1,580,000) (0.11)
Other net assets 13,683,122 0.99
Total net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 1,374,589,678 100.00

* Due to illiquid nature of security a discount has been applied to the asset price.
** Security is deemed past due or impaired asset valued at £ nil as at 30 April 2020.
*** Security in liquidation and delisted.
**** Security held in a side-pocket share class. Refer to note 4 for further details.
***** The counterparty for Options written and Open Future contracts is UBS.
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The following table lists details of the underlying funds that the Fund invests in:

Fund name Name of manager Domicile of fund
Management fee 

rates
Performance fee 

rates
Aviva Investors Investment UK  Property Fund Aviva Investors UK Fund Services Limited UK 2.00% -
AXA Framlington UK Select Opportunities Fund* AXA Investment Managers UK Limited UK 0.75% -
Baillie Gifford Overseas Growth Funds ICVC - Japanese Fund* Baillie Gifford & Co Limited UK 0.65% -
Barings European High Yield Bond Fund Baring Asset Management Limited Ireland - -
Barings European Opportunities Fund* Baring Asset Management Limited Ireland - -
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund Baring Asset Management Limited Ireland - -
Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund Baring Asset Management Limited Ireland - -
Barings Global Flexible Allocation Fund* Baring Asset Management Limited Ireland - -
Barings US High Yield Bond Component Fund Baring Asset Management Limited Ireland 0.75% -
BlackRock UK Property Fund BlackRock (Channel Islands) Limited Jersey 1.00% -
Chenavari Capital Solutions Chenavari Investment Managers (Luxembourg) Guernsey 1.00% 20.00%
Crystal Amber Fund Crystal Amber Asset Management (Guernsey) Guernsey 2.00% 20.00%
Doric Nimrod Air One Doric Lease Corp Partners LLP UK - -
Global MENA Financial Assets Fund Global Capital Management Limited UK 2.00% 20.00%
ING Real Estate Eurosiris Fund CBRE GMM Eurosiris Fund Management B.V. Netherlands 0.40% -
Legal & General US Index Trust Legal & General (Unit Trust Managers) Limited UK 0.48% -
Low Carbon Accelerator Low Carbon Initiative UK - -
Neuberger Berman High Yield Bond Fund* Neuberger Berman Europe Limited Ireland 0.60% -
Schroder Unit Trusts United Kingdom Real Estate Schroder Real Estate Managers (Jersey) UK 0.30% -
Twelve Cat UCITS ICAV MultiConcept Fund Management S.A Ireland 0.90% -
Xtrackers II Emerging Markets Bond UCITS ETF Deutsche Asset Management S.A. (ETF) Luxembourg 0.40% -

* The Fund receives a rebate of management fees charged in the investment funds; please refer to note 9.
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Baring International Fund Managers Ireland (the "Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM")") remuneration policy ensures the 
remuneration arrangements as defined in ESMA’s “Guidelines on Sound Remuneration Policy under the UCITS directive and AIFMD” 
(ESMA 2016/411) (the 'ESMA Guidelines'), (as amended) are:

(i) consistent with and promote sound and effective risk management and do not encourage risk-taking which is inconsistent with 
the risk profile, rules or constitution of the AIFM or the Fund; and 

(ii) consistent with the AIFM’s business strategy, objectives, values and interests and includes measures to avoid conflicts of interest.
 
The AIFM complies with the remuneration principles in a way and to the extent that is appropriate to its size and business.

Remuneration committee
Due to the size and nature of the AIFM, the Board of Directors of the AIFM (the “AIFM Board”) considers it appropriate to dis-apply 
the requirement to appoint a remuneration committee.

The AIFM forms part of the Barings Europe Limited (UK) group of companies (“Barings”). Barings has two remuneration committees 
to take remuneration decisions, namely the Remunerations Committee and the Senior Compensation Committee. The remuneration 
committees ensure the fair and proportionate application of the remuneration rules and ensures that potential conflicts arising from 
remuneration are managed and mitigated appropriately.

Remuneration Code Staff
The AIFM has determined its Remuneration Code Staff as the following: 

a) Senior Management
Senior Management comprises the AIFM Board.

b) Control Functions
All the Central Bank of Ireland (the “CBI”) Pre Approved Control Functions (“PCFs”) are included within the definition of 
Remuneration Code Staff. 

c) Risk takers
Risk Takers are defined as the investment managers of the AIFs. Investment management is delegated to firms subject to an 
equivalent remuneration regime and therefore the AIFM currently has no risk takers outside of senior management. 

d) Employees in the same remuneration bracket as risk takers
The AIFM will not treat a person as Remuneration Code Staff if a person’s professional activities do not have a material impact 
on the risk profiles of the firm or the Funds.

e) Staff responsible for heading the investment management, administration, marketing and human resources
There are no staff in this category that are not captured in other categories.
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Remuneration disclosure:
The disclosure below details fixed and variable remuneration paid to AIFM’s Remuneration Code Staff

Number of  
beneficiaries

Total remuneration Total Fixed  
Remuneration 

Total Variable  
remuneration

Total remuneration paid 
by the AIFM in relation 
to the Fund* 

11 €103,366 €58,299 €45,067

Total Senior 
Management 
Remuneration paid by 
the AIFM ** 

11 €1,245,900 €702,692 €543,208

Risk Takers 
remuneration 

0 €0 €0 €0

Employees in the same 
remuneration bracket 
as risk takers 

0 €0 €0 €0

The AIFM’s remuneration policy is reviewed annually both in respect of the general principles it contains and its own implementation.
The above disclosures are made in line with Barings' interpretation of currently available regulatory guidance on quantitative 
remuneration disclosures. As market or regulatory practice develops, Barings may consider it appropriate to make changes to the 
way in which quantitative remuneration disclosures are calculated. Where such changes are made, this may result in disclosures in 
relation to a fund not being comparable to the disclosures made in the prior year, or in relation to other Barings fund disclosures in 
that same year.

Notes:
* The AIFM does not make any direct payments to staff who are paid by other Barings Group entities. Figures shown are apportioned 
on a fund Asset Under Management (“AUM”) basis as a proportion of Barings total AUM as at 30 April 2020. Accordingly, the figures 
are not representative of any individual's actual remuneration. 

** Senior management remuneration is apportioned on the basis of the AIFM’s total AUM as a proportion of Barings total AUM.

Variable remuneration consists of Short Term Incentive awards, Long Term Incentive awards and any other variable payments 
including benefits in kind and discretionary pension awards. 

The Fund does not charge a performance fee or award carried interest.
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Introduction
Pursuant to the European Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (Directive 2011/61/EU of the European Parliament and 
the Council of the European Union, or “AIFMD”) Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited (“BIFMI”), as an Alternative 
Investment Fund Manager (“AIFM”), is required to periodically disclose certain information to investors in the Alternative Investment 
Funds (“AIFs”) for which it acts as the AIFM. This impacts Barings Alpha Funds Plc as a RIAIF managed by BIFMI and all Funds of 
this umbrella entity.

Periodic Reporting
In accordance with Article 23(4) of AIFMD and Articles 108 of Delegated Regulation (EU) No 231/2013, BIFMI is required to disclose 
to investors the following information for the financial year ended 30 April 2020, at the same time as the annual report is made 
available to investors of the Fund:

• There were no assets held that are subject to special arrangements arising from their illiquid nature.
• There were no new arrangements for managing the liquidity of the Fund.
• The current risk profile of the Fund and the risk management systems employed by the AIFM to manage those risks are included 

on pages 58. 
There have been no changes to the risk profiles or risk management systems for the Fund in the financial year ended 30 April 2020.
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Overview of Risk Management Systems

Summary Organisational Features
The AIFMD related risk management for the Funds of Barings Alpha Funds Plc (the “Company”) is carried out by the Designated 
Person for Risk of Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited (the “AIFM”) and risk management team, who form part of the 
Permanent Risk Management function at the AIFM. The AIFM risk management team is also supported by the AIFM’s intra company 
delegated risk management functions within Barings Asset Management Limited and Barings LLC. The Risk Management Function 
within Barings is independent of Barings’ operating units, including the portfolio management teams. The Designated Person for Risk 
of the AIFM reports to the Chief Executive Officer and Board of the AIFM.

Primary Risk Types
Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund (the “Fund”) invests in a wide range of asset types including Fixed Income Securities, Equities, 
Alternative Asset Classes, Commodities and Property Assets. Allocation to each different asset type varies over time. Examples of the 
types of risk to which the Fund managed by the AIFM is exposed include:

• Market risks: including sensitivity of NAV to changes in interest rates, credit spreads, price volatility and currency exchange rates, 
extent of leverage permitted/utilised

• Credit risks: including probability of default and loss on the debt instruments held by each sub-fund
• Liquidity risks: including cash requirements for investment and hedging settlements, and cash requirements for servicing 

redemption requests
• Counterparty risks:  including  those  relating to  open  unsettled  asset  trades,  and  OTC
• derivative counterparty exposure on currency hedging trades
• Operational risks: including those relating to the volume of trade activity in the assets of a fund and the shares issued by a fund, 

as well as the complexity of the asset types held by the Fund.

Risk Management Systems and Controls
For the Fund, the Risk Manager works with the portfolio management teams to agree a set of quantitative and qualitative measures 
and limits which are used to identify, measure, manage and monitor the risks to which the AIFs are exposed. These measures and 
limits are set to be consistent with the risk profile of the Fund. The risk management team assesses each measure and limit at a 
prescribed interval based on data sourced independently from the portfolio management teams. The risk measures calculated are 
evaluated both as point in time data points and also in time series analysis to identify trends and outliers. The risk management 
team also undertakes periodic stress tests and scenario analysis to evaluate the impact of potential changes in interest rates, credit 
spreads and currency exchange rates that might adversely impact the Fund.

The performance of the risk management function is reviewed by the AIFM’s Board at least annually. Risk management policies and 
procedures are also updated from time to time to reflect internal or external events (e.g. launching a new Fund) and to reflect any 
material changes made to the investment strategy and objectives of an existing Fund managed by the AIFM.
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Fund Specific Summary Risk Profile

Fund Name Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund
As at Date 30 April 2020
Summary Investment Objective The objective of the Fund is to achieve an absolute return of 4% in excess of cash 

based on the 3 month sterling LIBOR.

The Fund will invest primarily in, and/or seek to benefit from investment returns derived 
from, Fixed Income Securities, Equities, Alternative Asset Classes, Commodities and 
Property Assets.

Fixed Income Securities include but are not limited to instruments and obligations 
issued by the UK Government or other sovereign governments or their agencies and 
securities, instruments and obligations issued by supranational or public international 
bodies, banks, corporates or other commercial issuers on a worldwide basis and which 
are generally traded on stock exchanges and markets. Such Fixed Income Securities, 
obligations and instruments, which may be fixed or floating, can be denominated in any 
currency and may be listed or traded in the jurisdiction of issue or another jurisdiction. 
The Fixed Income Securities in which the Fund can invest or from which its investment 
returns may be derived can consist of both Investment Grade and high yield corporate 
debt with the minimum credit rating of B-/B3 (as rated by Standard & Poors or Moody’s 
or the equivalent from another recognised rating agency). The Fund may also invest 
in unrated instruments which, in the opinion of the Investment Manager, if rated would 
qualify as Investment Grade.

Equities include but are not limited to securities which are traded on global exchanges 
and markets which are regulated, operate regularly, are recognised and which are 
open to the public.

Alternative Asset Classes include but are not limited to transferable securities such as 
equity and debt securities issued by Investment Trust Companies listed on the London 
Stock Exchange (which are not closed-ended in nature as an investor can redeem 
units at his/ her discretion) and which directly provide participation in hedge funds, 
private equity and similar alternative assets.

Commodities include but are not limited to the equity-related securities of commodity 
producers listed or traded on global stock exchanges and markets, being companies 
engaged in the extraction, production, processing and/or trading of commodities e.g. 
oil, gold, aluminium, coffee and sugar, securities whose performance is influenced to 
the performance of commodities, investible commodity indices and their derivatives. 
The Fund will not invest directly into commodities.

Property Assets include Underlying Funds which invest predominantly in the property 
market, transferable securities, including but not limited to equities and equity related 
instruments (such as ADR’s, GDR’s, preferred stock, rights, convertibles and equity 
linked notes) of property companies which are listed or traded on global stock 
exchanges and markets, or debt securities issued by property companies which may 
or may not be rated investment grade. The Fund will not invest directly into property.
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Fund Name Barings Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund
As at Date 30 April 2020
Primary Asset Type(s) Equities, Fixed Income Securities (both Investment Grade and High Yield), alternative 

assets and commodities
Degree of diversification Diversified
Rating Profile Unrated equity large cap and mid cap holdings, sub-investment grade and investment 

grade fixed income holdings
Sensitivity of NAV to Price Volatility Risk Variable – Low risk if allocation to equity is small. Can be high risk if the allocation to 

equity increases to become the largest allocation percentage in the portfolio
Sensitivity of NAV to Interest Rate Risk Variable – Low risk if allocation to debt instruments is small. Risk will remain low if 

allocation to debt instruments increase, but investments are in floating rate securities 
with short duration. High risk if allocation to long duration, fixed coupon instruments 
increases to the point where that is the largest allocation in the portfolio

Sensitivity of NAV to Credit Spread Risk Variable – Low risk if allocation to high yield instruments is low. Risk can increase if 
allocation to high yield debt instruments increases

Sensitivity of NAV to Currency Movements Very Low – portfolio currency hedging carried out
Extent of Leverage No leverage for investment purposes
Short term liquidity facility in place Yes
Dealing Frequency Weekly
Redemption Notice Period 3 days



Registered address: 
Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited
70 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay
Dublin 2
D02 R296
Ireland
Contact:
Tel: +353 1 542 2930
Fax: +353 1 670 1185
www.barings.com

Important information: 
This document is approved and issued by Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited. 

Disclosure: 
Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited
Authorised and regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland
70 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, D02 R296, Ireland
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